SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P. O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

BOARD MEETING AGENDA
March 22, 2012
9:00 a.m.

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors will be held at 9:00 a.m. on Thursday, March 22, 2012,
in the BART Board Room, Kaiser Center 20™ Street Mall — Third Floor, 344 — 201 Street, Oakland,
California.

Members of the public may address the Board of Directors regarding any matter on this agenda.
Please complete a “Request to Address the Board” form (available at the entrance to the Board
Room) and hand it to the Secretary before the item is considered by the Board. If you wish to
discuss a matter that is not on the agenda during a regular meeting, you may do so under General
Discussion and Public Comment.

Any action requiring more than a majority vote for passage will be so noted.

[tems placed under “consent calendar” are considered routine and will be received, enacted,
approved, or adopted by one motion unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is
received from a Director or from a member of the audience.

Please refrain from wearing scented products (perfume, cologne, after-shave, etc.) to these meetings,
as there may be people in attendance susceptible to environmental illnesses.

BART provides service/accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and individuals
who are limited English proficient who wish to address BART Board matters. A request must be
made within one and five days in advance of Board meetings, depending on the service requested.
Please contact the Office of the District Secretary at 510-464-6083 for information.

Rules governing the participation of the public at meetings of the Board of Directors and Standing
Committees are available for review on the District's website (http://www.bart.gov/about/bod), in
the BART Board Room, and upon request, in person or via mail.

Meeting notices and agendas are available for review on the District's website
(http://www.bart.gov/about/bod/meetings.aspx), and via email or via regular mail upon request.
Complete agenda packets (in PDF format) are available for review on the District's website no later
than 48 hours in advance of the meeting. Those interested in being on the mailing list for meeting
notices (email or regular mail) can do so by providing the District Secretary with the appropriate
address.

Please submit your requests to the District Secretary via email to BoardofDirectors@bart.gov; in
person or U.S. mail at 300 Lakeside Drive, 23" Floor, Oakland, CA 94612; fax 510-464-6011; or
telephone 510-464-6083.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



Regular Meeting of the
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The purpose of the Board Meeting is to consider and take such action as the Board may
desire in connection with:

1. CALL TO ORDER

A. Roll Call.
B. Pledge of Allegiance.
G Introduction of Special Guests.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR

A. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of March 8, 2012.* Board requested
to authorize.

B. Consolidation of 2012 District Elections.* Board requested to authorize.

(@ Award of Contract No. 79HS-110, Oakland Wye and Berkeley Hills
Tunnel Intrusion Detection System.* Board requested to authorize.

D. Approval of East Bay Paratransit Consortium Service Plan for Fiscal Year
2013 Alameda County Measure B Claim.* Board requested to authorize.

3. ADMINISTRATION ITEMS
Director Sweet, Chairperson

A. Amendments to the Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Program. *
Board requested to authorize.

B. Execution of Contract Option for CDSNet, LLC for the Sales and
Exchange of Tickets.* Board requested to authorize.

4. ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS ITEMS
Director Fang, Chairperson

A. Award of Contract No. 49GG-210, Procurement of Vehicle Automatic
Train Control (VATC) Refurbished Printed Circuit Boards and Modules. *
Board requested to authorize.

B. Oakland Airport Connector Project: Quarterly Update.* For information.

C. National Organization of Black Law Enforcement Executives (NOBLE)
Report Management Audit Response Matrix Update.* For information.

5. PLANNING. PUBLIC AFFAIRS., ACCESS. AND LEGISLATION ITEMS
Director Blalock, Chairperson
NO ITEMS.

* Attachment available 2 0f3



6. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT
NO REPORT.

7. BOARD MATTERS

A. Board Member Reports. For information.

B. Roll Call for Introductions.
(An opportunity for Board members to introduce a matter for consideration at a future
Committee or Board Meeting or to request District staff to prepare items or reports.)

8. GENERAL DISCUSSION AND PUBLIC COMMENT

9. CLOSED SESSION (Room 303, Board Conference Room)

A. PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION
Agency Negotiators: Directors McPartland, Radulovich, and Sweet
Titles: General Manager, General Counsel, Controller-Treasurer, District
Secretary, and Independent Police Auditor
Gov’t. Code Section: 54957

10. OPEN SESSION

* Attachment available 3of3



DRAFT

SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT
300 Lakeside Drive, P.O. Box 12688, Oakland, CA 94604-2688

Board of Directors
Minutes of the 1,650th Meeting
March 8, 2012

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held March 8, 2012, convening at 9:13 a.m. in
the Board Room, 344 20™ Street, Oakland, California. President McPartland presided;
Kenneth A. Duron, District Secretary.

Directors present: Directors Blalock, Fang, Franklin, Keller, Murray, and McPartland.

Absent:  Director Raburn. Directors Radulovich and Sweet entered the Meeting
later.

Consent Calendar item brought before the Board was:

15 Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of February 23, 2012.
Consent Calendar report brought before the Board was:

1. Fiscal Year 2012 Second Quarter Financial Report.
Director Fang moved that the Minutes of the Meeting of February 23, 2012, be approved.
Director Blalock seconded the motion, which carried by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes — 6:
Directors Blalock, Fang, Franklin, Keller, Murray, and McPartland. Noes — 0. Absent — 3:
Directors Raburn, Radulovich, and Sweet.
President McPartland announced that the Board would enter into closed session under Item 3-A
(Conference with Labor Negotiators; Public Employee Performance) of the regular meeting
agenda, and that the Board would reconvene in open session at the conclusion of the closed

session.

The Board Meeting recessed at 9:15 a.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in closed session at 9:19 a.m.

Directors present: Directors Blalock, Fang, Franklin, Keller, Murray, Sweet, and
McPartland.

Absent:  Director Raburn. Director Radulovich entered the Meeting later.

Director Radulovich entered the Meeting.



DRAFT

The Board Meeting recessed at 11:12 a.m.

The Board Meeting reconvened in open session at 11:17 a.m.

Directors present: Directors Blalock, Fang, Franklin, Keller, Murray, Radulovich, Sweet, and
McPartland.

Absent:  Director Raburn.
President McPartland announced that there was no action to be reported from closed session.

Director Sweet, Chairperson of the Administration Committee, brought the matter of Fiscal Year
2013 Budget: Financial Priorities, before the Board. Mr. Carter Mau, Executive Manager,
Planning and Budgets, Ms. Stacey Perkins, Project Manager, and Mr. Robert Umbreit,
Department Manager, Operating Budget and Analysis, presented the item.

Director Fang exited the Meeting.
The item was discussed.
Mr. Darrel Carey addressed the Board.

President McPartland, Vice Chairperson of the Engineering and Operations Committee, brought
the matter of Award of Contract No. 15PB-110A, Earthquake Safety Program Aerial Structures —
A Line North, before the Board. Mr. Thomas Horton, Manager of Earthquake Safety Programs,
presented the item.

The following individuals addressed the Board:
Mr. Eddie Dillard

Mr. Darrel Carey

Ms. Yolanda Jones

Mr. Wilson Lew

Ms. Leslie Sakai

The item was discussed.

Director Sweet moved that the General Manager be authorized to award Contract No. 15PB-
110A, Earthquake Safety Program, Aerial Structures — A Line North, to Atkinson Contractors,
LP, for the Bid amount of $19,169,881.00, and be authorized to exercise the three options, for a
total price of $9,109,016.50, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager and
subject to the District’s protest procedures and the Federal Highway Administration’s
requirements related to protest procedures. Director Blalock seconded the motion, which carried



DRAFT

by unanimous electronic vote. Ayes —7: Directors Blalock, Franklin, Keller, Murray,
Radulovich, Sweet, and McPartland. Noes —0. Absent —2: Directors Fang and Raburn.

Director Blalock, Chairperson of the Planning, Public Affairs, Access, and Legislation
Committee, had no report.

President McPartland called for the General Manager’s Report. General Manager Grace
Crunican reported that the system had carried 387,555 passengers on March 7, 2012, and that the
District was conducting community meetings during the month of March to seek input on
proposed fare increases, Clipper® card distribution, and the draft Environmental Justice Policy.
Ms. Crunican reported on steps she had taken and meetings she had participated in.

President McPartland called for Board Member Reports.

Director Murray reported that she had attended a Lafayette City Council meeting regarding State
of Good Repair tours.

Director Franklin reported that he had attended a meeting with BART, AC Transit, and the
Metropolitan Transportation Commission regarding service improvements and fare coordination,
and spent a day lobbying in Sacramento on behalf of the Capitol Corridor Joint Powers Authority
Board.

Director Radulovich reported he had attended a community meeting in the Balboa Park
neighborhood.

Director Sweet reported she had attended the meeting of the Oversight Board for the San
Francisco Redevelopment Agency Successor Committee.

Director Keller reported he had attended a meeting with Taber Construction.

President McPartland reported he had attended the Alameda County Transportation Commission
meeting, the Alameda County Emergency Managers Association meeting, the Castro Valley
Veterans Memorial groundbreaking, several staff meetings, and a meeting with the mayor of
Livermore.

Mr. Duron reported that Director Raburn had asked his report be included in the Minutes.
Director Raburn attended the Oakland Planning Commission discussion of Lake Merritt Station
Area plan; met with Councilmember Rebecca Kaplan to discuss transit-oriented development in
Oakland; the Oakland Community Economic Development Agency discussion of Coliseum
City; Urban Land Institute interviews with leaders to discuss Broadway development plans; and
an energy efficiency discussion at Oakland’s Allen Temple.

President McPartland brought Roll Call for Introductions before the Board.

President McPartland requested a report on an accident noted by public speaker Darrel Carey
involving District contractor R&L Brosamer in Oakland.



DRAFT

Director Sweet exited the Meeting.

President McPartland called for General Discussion and Public Comment. The following
individuals addressed the Board.

Mr. Robert Allen
Mr. Jerry Grace
Mr. Richard Oba

Board Meeting was adjourned at 1:22 p.m.

Kenneth A. Duron
District Secretary



ba

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GE AL MANAGER AP PﬁOVAL:f GEMNERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
4 : :
20 'y (Do Approve and forward to the Board of Directors
QLG bm<uL
DATE: ¢ 1 :
3[4{ [2): Ly BOARD INITIATED ITEM: NoO
Originator/Prepared By fnneth ADuron |General Counsel Controller[Treasuret /] Dist ‘.?ecretary
Dept: District Segre! | W i / /) '
[, | &l\"“ s
Signature/Date: \J Cf,\ \"5\\2 ,"\_i -

™ z

CONSOLIDATION OF 2012 DISTRICT ELECTIONS

TITLE:

NARRATIVE:

PURPOSE: To receive Board approval of a resolution requesting the Boards of Supervisors of
Alameda County, Contra Costa County, and the City and County of San Francisco to provide for
the consolidation of the District election of members of the Board of Directors with the State of
California general election to be held on November 6, 2012. The election districts are 1, 3, 5, 7,
and 9.

DISCUSSION: In order to conform to the California State Elections Code, the District must
request the Boards of Supervisors of the Counties of Alameda, Contra Costa and San Francisco
to consolidate the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District election with the State of
California general election. The attached resolution has been drafted to accomplish this.

FISCAL IMPACT: Funding in the amount of $1,000,000 has been allocated in the Fiscal Year
2013 Operating Budget to cover both the District’s share of the cost of the election and the cost
of printing, handling, translating, and mailing the candidates' statements. Some of the costs for
the candidates' statements will be reimbursed to the District. The Fiscal Year 2013 Operating
Budget allocation covers both Election Consolidation and Candidates' Statement of
Qualifications. Board Resolution No. 4652, adopted by the Board of Directors on March 27,
1997, (attached) establishes rules governing candidates’ Statements of Qualifications for District
elections.

ALTERNATIVES: None.
RECOMMENDATION: That the Board of Directors adopt the attached resolution requesting
the Boards of Supervisors of Alameda County, Contra Costa County, and the City and County of

San Francisco, to provide for the consolidation of the District election with the State of
California general election, to be held on November 6, 2012.

MOTION: Adoption of the attached Resolution.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Resolution of the Board of Directors of the

San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District

requesting the Boards of Supervisors of Alameda

County, Contra Costa County, and the City and

County of San Francisco to provide for the

consolidation of a District election, electing

members of the Board of Directors,

with the State of California general election, to

be held on November 6., 2012. / Resolution No.

WHEREAS, Section 28746.6 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California
provides:

“A general district election for the election of directors whose terms are to expire in that year
shall be held and conducted on the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November of each
even-numbered year and shall be consolidated, where possible, with the general election held on
that date.” and

WHEREAS, Section 28746.8 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California
provides:

“Except as otherwise provided in this article, candidates for the Board shall be nominated, the
election held and conducted, and the ballots canvassed in accordance with the provisions of the
Uniform District Election Law.” and

WHEREAS, Section 28747.2 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California
provides:

“A candidate for election from any of the election districts shall be nominated and elected by the
voters residing within the election district from which he is elected.” and

WHEREAS, Section 28747.4 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California in
part provides:

“The county elections official of each county within the boundaries of the district shall
conduct the election and canvass the returns for those election districts or portions of election
districts which are within the county of his or her jurisdiction as county elections official. After
the official canvass has been taken, the county elections official shall report the returns, by
election district number, to the board.” and

WHEREAS, a State of California General Election will be held on Tuesday, November 6,
2012; and



WHEREAS, the California State Legislature has established nine election districts within
the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District as provided in Section 28745 of the Public
Utilities Code of the State of California; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 10522 of the Elections Code and 28750.4 of the Public
Utilities Code of the State of California, the District has filed with the county elections official of
each affected County a certified copy of Resolution No. 5184 of the Board of Directors of the
San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District which provides a map showing the boundaries of
the District and the boundaries of the election districts and maps of the election districts prepared
in accordance with Article 2.4 of Chapter 3 of Part 2 of Division 10 of the Public Utilities Code
of the State of California; and

WHEREAS, the territory in which said election is to be held is, to wit, all of the territory
of said Districts Nos. 1, 3, 5, 7, and 9 lying within the County of Alameda, the County of Contra
Costa, and the City and County of San Francisco (hereinafter called the "Counties").

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San Francisco
Bay Area Rapid Transit District, as follows:

Section 1.

That the Boards of Supervisors of the Counties are hereby requested to order the
consolidation of said district elections with said general election to be held on Tuesday,
November 6, 2012, and to further provide that within the territory affected by said order of
consolidation, to wit, the Counties, that except as otherwise provided in Article 2.2 of Chapter 3
of Part 2 of Division 10 of the Public Utilities Code of the State of California, the election shall
be held and conducted and the ballots canvassed in accordance with the provisions of said
Uniform District Election Law.

Section 2.
That the Secretary of the District is hereby authorized and directed to certify to the due
adoption of this resolution and to file copies hereof, so certified, with the Board of Supervisors

and with the county elections official of each of the counties.

# # #



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE B ? r
SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT :

Resolution of the Board of Directors of

the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit

District Establishing the District Rules

Governing Candidates’ Statement of

Qualifications for District Elections _ / Resolution No. 4652

WHEREAS, Section 13307 of the Elections Code of the State of California
provides, among other things, that candidates for District office may prepare a candidate’s
Statement of Qualifications of up to 200 words; the Board may authorize an increase in the
limitation on words for the statement from 200 to 400 words; the Board may require each
candidate filing a statement to pay in advance his or her estimated pro rata share of the total cost
of producing and mailing the candidate’s statement; and that, before the nomination period
opens, the Board shall determine whether a charge shall be levied against that candidate for the
candidate’s statement, and

WHEREAS, it is the intent of the Board of Directors of the San Frané_isco'Bay
Area Rapid Transit District to adopt rules governing candidates’ Statements of Qualifications for
District elections.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the San
Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District, as follows:

Il Each candidate for the BART Board of Directors who prepares a
candidate’s Statement of Qualifications pursuant to California Elections Code Section 13307
shall be required to pay a total election fee of $750 at the time of filing as part of the cost to the
District of printing, handling, translating, and mailing the candidate’s statement, including the
cost of foreign language translations.

2. The limit on the length of the candidate’s Statement of Qualifications shall
be 200 words.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the District Secretary is authorized to adopt
procedures consistent with Section 13309 of the Elections Code for relieving indigent candidates
from paying the requisite fee; and

1cf 2

Adopted March 27, 1997



A

66

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that each candidate filing as a candidate for
BART Director must complete the State of California Fair Political Practices Commission’s
disclosure form entitled: “Statement of Economic Interests” and to file said form with the
District Secretary of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the provisions of this resolution shall govern
the 1998 election and all subsequent elections for the District’s Board of Directors unless
otherwise modified by this Board.

Supersedes Resolution No. 4622, adopted June 27, 1996.

t # #

2 of 2



ba
EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

L MANAGEFI AJ;PFLO AL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Approve and forward to the Board of Directors

DATE c 3/; (é// A K_ oy BOARD INTIATED FEM: No
Originator/Prepared by: Anthony Seung General C Jrer
Dept;-Anthony Seung l‘{fv \

Bor =T Jwbﬁ»

ITLE: /
Award of Contract No. 79HS-110
QOakland Wye & Berkeley Hills
Tunnel Intrusion Detection System
NARRATIVE:
PURPOSE:

To request Board authorization to award Contract No. 79HS-110 - Oakland Wye & Berkeley
Hills Tunnel Intrusion Detection System to Blocka Construction, Inc.

DISCUSSION:

The BART Tunnel Intrusion Detection System Project involves the installation of security
systems including video surveillance and access control systems consisting of equipment,
devices, mounting assemblies, pull boxes, junction boxes, conduit, wire, and associated
interconnection for seven locations within Alameda and Contra Costa County.

Advance Notice to Bidders was mailed on 11/10/11 to 61 firms. The Contract was advertised
on 11/08/11. A Pre-Bid Meeting was held on 1/5/12 with 14 potential bidders attending. Four
bids were received. Bids were opened publicly on 2/21/12. Tabulation of the bids, including
the Engineer’s Estimate, is as follows:

Bidder Location Base Bid

1. Blocka Construction, Inc. Fremont, CA $1,295,300.00
2. Steiny and Company Inc. Vallejo, CA $1,550,660.00
3. Balfour Beatty Rail, Inc. West Covina, CA $1,591,217.00
4. Cal Electro, Inc. Redding, CA $1,887,000.00
Engineer’s Estimate: $1,790,000.00

After review by the District Staff, the apparent low bid, submitted by Blocka Construction,
Inc. has been deemed to be responsive to the solicitation and the bid price of $1,295,300.00
has been determined to be fair and reasonable. Examination of this bidder’s business
experience and financial capabilities has resulted in a determination that this bidder is
responsible.



Award of Contract No. 79HS-110

This Contract is funded in part by a grant from the U.S. Department of Homeland Security
(DHS), which requires the Bidders to take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that small
and minority firms, women's business enterprises, and disadvantaged business concerns are
used whenever possible. The DHS grant does not provide for Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise (DBE) goals.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $1,295,300 for award of Contract No. 79HS-110 is included in the total project
budget for the FMS #79HS000 - Intrusion Alarm Detection System. The Office of the
Controller/Treasurer certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation.

As of March 06, 2012, $4,478,144.00 is available for this project from the following sources:

F/G 3753 - FY2008 TSGP TIER GRT #20 3.700,000.00
F/G 535F FY08-09 PROP 1B Security 430,00.00
F/G 535T FY07-08 CTSGP PROP 1B(HOMELND) 348,144.00
TOTAL 4,478,144.00

BART has expended $1,544,545.94, committed $191,828.75, and reserved $11,792.00 to
date for other actions. This action will commit $1,295,300 leaving an available fund balance
of $1,434,677.31 in this project.

There is no fiscal impact on available un-programmed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:

The alternative is not to authorize award of the Contract. If the Contract is not awarded,
BART will be unable to implement at this time the Oakland Wye & Berkeley Hills Tunnel
Intrusion Detection Systems identified as 79HS - Tunnel Intrusion Detection System Project.

RECOMMENDATION:

On the basis of analysis by Staff and certification by the Controller-Treasurer that the funds
are available for this purpose, Staff recommends that the Board adopt the following Motion:

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No.79HS-110 - Oakland Wye &
Berkeley Hills Tunnel Intrusion Detection System, to Blocka Construction, Inc, for the Bid
price of $1,295,300.00, pursuant to notification to be issued by the General Manager and
subject to the District's protest procedures and the Department of Homeland Security's

procedures related to protests.



ba

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

GEN L MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Forward to PPAAL for March 22, 2012 meeting
il a 1S e= LN BOARD INITIATED ITEM. No
Orlgmator!Prepared by;Laura Tlmothy General Coungel Controljer, 'District Secretary B
Dept: Cus er Acc
dl 74 !
|gnature!Date /2 i i ) LA L] [ ]

TITLE: ~Cl/
Approval of East Bay Paratransit Consortium Service Plan for FY 2013 Alameda County
Measure B Claim

NARRATIVE:

PURPOSE

To approve a plan for East Bay Paratransit Consortium (hereinafter "the Plan") service in
Alameda County in Fiscal Year 2013 to be submitted to Alameda County Transportation
Commission (ACTC) in order to secure funding from Alameda County's Measure B.

DISCUSSION

In 2000, Alameda County residents adopted Measure B, a one-half cent sales tax measure to
support transportation and transit projects from 2002 through 2022. Measure B is managed by
ACTC, which was formed in 2010 by the merger of two existing Alameda County agencies: The
Alameda County Congestion Management Agency and the Transportation Improvement
Authority. Measure B specifies that 1.49% of the annual net revenues are to be allocated to
BART's provision of paratransit "services mandated by the Americans with Disabilities Act
(ADA)" in Alameda County.

As part of its process for Measure B claimants, ACTC requires that BART submit a plan for the
use of the funds. AC Transit, as a partner with BART in providing East Bay Paratransit
Consortium services, is also allocated a share of paratransit funds through Measure B, and will be
submitting an identical plan. The Plan emphasizes the federal requirements for ADA mandated
service and specifies the ways in which East Bay Paratransit fulfills these requirements.

The Plan was discussed with the Service Review Advisory Committee, which is the rider
advisory committee to the East Bay Paratransit Consortium, on March 9, 2012. There were no
requests for changes in the Plan. The Service Review Committee of the East Bay Paratransit
Consortium, consisting of representatives of the General Managers of BART and AC Transit (or
their designees), subsequently approved the Plan for submittal to the BART and AC Transit
Boards.

FISCAL IMPACT

Following submittal of the Plan and Board resolution, the District will receive 1.49% of the net
revenues of Measure B, currently projected by ACTC to be $1,551,016 in FY 2013. These funds,
which are for the provision of paratransit in Alameda County, will be reflected in the General
Fund as financial assistance revenue and will offset approximately 13.6% of the District's
paratransit program costs for East Bay Paratransit.



Approval of East Bay Paratransit Consortium Service Plan for FY 2013 Alameda County Measure B Claim

ALTERNATIVES
Do not submit the plan and forgo the Measure B funds which will result in the District's need to
contribute additional General Funds to meet mandated ADA paratransit service obligations.

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion:

MOTION

That the Board of Directors adopt the attached Resolution approving the East Bay Paratransit
Consortium Service Plan for FY 2013 to be submitted to Alameda County Transportation
Commission as part of the process to claim Measure B funding for paratransit services in

Alameda County that are mandated by the Americans with Disabilities Act.



BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

In the Matter of Approving the

East Bay Paratransit Consortium Service Plan

For FY 2013 for

Submittal to Alameda County Transportation
Commission Resolution No.

WHEREAS, the Reauthorization of Measure B, approved by the voters of Alameda
County in November 2000, authorized the extension of a half-cent sales tax for the
purpose of funding transportation projects, and

WHEREAS, the Alameda County Transportation Commission (ACTC) administers
the sales tax proceeds from the Reauthorization, and

WHEREAS, ACTC has established a specific process for disbursement of funds for
“Special Transportation Services for Seniors and People with Disabilities”, including
those funds specified in Measure B as intended for paratransit services that are
mandated by the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), and

WHEREAS, the Measure B expenditure plan provided that 1.49% of the net revenues
of the half-cent sales tax be allocated to BART for provision of services that are
mandated by the ADA in north and central Alameda County, and

WHEREAS, the process established by ACTC requires the approval of an annual
plan for the use of Measure B funds for the provision of paratransit services that are
mandated by the ADA, '

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the San
Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District hereby approves the East Bay Paratransit
Consortium Service Plan for FY 2013, as described in the attached Annual Program

Submittal for Measure B Funding or in substantially the same form, for submittal to
ACTC. '

L



ba

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

L MANAGER APPROVAL: GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:
Approve and forward to the Board of Directors

DATE: 3/ /4 /12 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: INO)

g;glnatoffpreparWs W \\9/ c?(qum’ 7 ;ﬁ: ;ﬁ-ict Secretary BARC .
/Q gy _. , /A
i '@//;{://Q_/ S, ﬁ\‘l‘h - Vet [ ] ?.'ll'

Signature/Datg.

|Status: Routed | Date Created: 03/01/2012 ]
TITLE:

Approve the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District's Disadvantaged Business
Enterprise Program

NARRATIVE:

Purpose: To authorize changes made to the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District’s Core
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program.

Discussion: 49 Code of Federal Regulations Part 26 ("49 CFR Part 26") governs the implementation of
Disadvantaged Business Enterprise ("DBE") programs by recipients of federal funding and establishes
which recipients of federal funding are required to have a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program
("DBE Program"), what the requirements of their DBE Program must be and the rules governing
implementation of DBE Programs.

The District's DBE Program is comprised of two parts: a) the first sections (the "Core DBE Program")
and b) appendices that set out procedures to implement the Core DBE Program (the “Appendices™).
Together the Core Program and the Appendices comprise the DBE Program.
Pursuant to the District’s DBE Program, any changes to the District’s Core DBE Program require
approval by the Board of Directors. (The revised Core DBE Program is attached.) Consistent with the
District’s practice, revised Appendices will be adopted by the Office of Civil Rights following Board
approval of the Core Program.
The Changes to the Core DBE Program reflect changes made in 49 CFR Part 26 to:

Incorporate the Small Business Elements recently approved by the Board.
5 Adjust the personal net worth cap established for DBE firms from $750,000 to $1.32 million.
* Clarify the rules governing termination of DBE firms from federally funded contracts.
i Revise procedures for interstate certification.
% Adoption of a new annual goal accountability mechanism.
* Address additional requirements of 49 CFR Part 26.

The Office of the General Counsel has approved as to form the revised Core DBE Program.

Fiscal Impact: None.

Alternative: The alternative is to not approve the changes to the District’s Core DBE Program. This
action would result in the District being found to be not implementing its DBE Program in good faith,
and hence to be in non-compliance with its obligations under 49 CFR Part 26 and related federal
requirements. As a result, the District could be subject to a number of actions by the Department of

Transportation, including the denial of federal funding and other remedies identified in 49 CFR Part 26,



for failing to properly implement its DBE Program.

Recommendation: Approval of the following motion.

Motion: That the Board of Directors approve the attached Core Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
Program for the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District.

Approve the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District's Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program



YOV IRMERT

'GE| L MANAGER A;)’P VAL: ' | GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

) Forward to Admin Committee
o B o[ ]12 BOARD INITIATED ITEM: No
Originator/Prépanged by: Julie

sy e [yﬂ"me‘iﬁt | General C%née;‘ Iil Contro Ier.‘TreaW‘f‘ﬁistrict Secretary ' BARC

' LXI N V{f N /‘{',V/‘
Signdture/Datet N L;/ A [1 (A 'D [1
'Status: Routed 'k ) Date Cre_aled, 03/05/2012

to Execute Final 5 Year Contract Option with CDSNet, Inc for Operation of
Booths for the Sale of Transit Tickets

NARRATIVE:

Purpose: To authorize the General Manager to execute a Change Order to exercise
the final option to extend Agreement No. 6G4435,0peration of Booths for the Sale of
Transit Tickets (the “Agreement”) for five years, to add services, and to change the
method of remuneration in the Agreement.

Discussion:

CDS Net, LLC (CDSNet), has provided discounted (High Value Discount,
Youth/Disabled red and Senior green) ticket sales in BART stations since 1997, when
the services were provided as a two-year demonstration project. In 1999, the company
was selected through a competitive RFP process to provide the services. The initial
Agreement period was two years with a one-year extension. A Change Order was
issued in 2002 to extend the contract by five years to 2007. The Change Order also
included two additional five-year options that could be executed by the District in its sole
discretion. In 2007, the Board approved the execution of a Change Order to exercise
the first of the options. CDSNet currently operates at seven BART stations:
Embarcadero, Montgomery, Powell, Civic Center, Bay Fair, Coliseum, Richmond, and
Walnut Creek.

In addition to providing ticket sales in BART stations, CDSNet has also provided ticket
exchange services since 2000 and sold tickets over the internet between 2000 and
2010. Clipper e-cash sales are also handled by CDSNet at the seven stations. Sales
grew from $3 million dollars per year in 1997 to $22 million dollars in 2010. In 2011,
sales dropped to about $20 million, reflecting the shift from paper tickets to Clipper.

Nearly 50% of BART customers currently use Clipper cards. However, fewer
discounted fare customers (senior, youth, disabled, and HVD) have migrated to Clipper
because the fare media transition reduced the number of locations (from 400 vendors to
under 10 vendors) where seniors, youth, and disabled BART customers could acquire
the same discounts on a Clipper card. The reduced network made applications for
discount fares less convenient and accessible for these customers. Thus, while sales
and exchanges of regular fare paper tickets continue to drop, in-station sales outlets



have become a backstop to ensure that seniors, youth, and disabled customers, who
have not transitioned to Clipper, will have some source for obtaining their discounted
fares. BART and MTC staff are currently studying how to more effectively transition
discounted fare customers to Clipper so that these paper ticket outlets will no longer be
necessary. In the interim, preserving these outlets is important to ensuring some
availability of BART discount fares to customers with limited mobility or resources.

Staff recommends extending the existing Agreement by exercising the last option,
rather than advertising an RFP for a new contractor, because the period of time that
paper ticket sales outlets will be necessary, as well as the number and location of such
outlets, is currently being negotiated between MTC and BART pursuant to MTC
Resolution 3866.

Over time, as additional customers migrate to Clipper, the cost of providing ticket sales
and exchange services will exceed the commissions provided for in the Agreement.
Staff believes that adding Clipper-related services to the Agreement would generate
additional fees for CDSNet. Changes to operating hours and the number of locations
could also be considered after appropriate analysis and an adequate public input
process are completed per federal and state regulations.

The terms of the Agreement include a right by either party to terminate with 30 days
notice. Thus, in order to maintain a minimal service level that is financially viable for
CDSNet, staff proposes to amend the Agreement to include a minimum guarantee of
income after taking into consideration operating expenses and a negotiated profit
margin. This will require a change in the remuneration for services rendered from
commissions and fees only to a minimum guaranteed monthly payment to the
contractor to reimburse it for pre-approved expenses plus a profit margin. When
commissions and fees earned exceed the minimum guaranteed amount, BART will not
pay the contractor any additional money. However, if the commissions and fees earned
do not meet the minimum threshold, BART will augment the contractor’s revenue up to
the minimum guaranteed amount.

The Change Order shall be subject to approval as to form by the Office of the General
Counsel.

Fiscal Impact:

Currently, the Agreement provides for CDSNet to receive a 3% sales commission for all
tickets sold, a $.75 fee for every exchange transaction processed, and 2% commission
on all Clipper e-cash sales. In the event that the ticket sales commissions and
exchange revenue generated is lower than the CDSNet’s expenses and a negotiated
profit margin, the District would pay up to $70,000 per year to cover such losses. The
$70,000 minimum guarantee amount was estimated by External Affairs. The percent of
the profit margin is still being negotiated with the contractor. Internal Audit reviewed
CDSNet's operating expenses and profit margin, and staff determined that $70,000 was
an appropriate minimum guarantee amount, given assumptions about expenses and

Execute Final 5 Year Contract Option with CDSNet, Inc for Operation of Booths for the Sale of Transit Tickets 2



the volume of ticket transactions.

The not-to-exceed amount for funding the minimum guarantee for the five-year option
period is $350,000. Funding will be provided from External Affairs.

Alternatives:
Extend the Agreement, but in lieu of a guaranteed minimum payment, adjust the
commission and fee rate upward to make the business more viable for the contractor.

Do not extend the Agreement and seek a new vendor through a competitive process.
However, the Agreement would expire before a new vendor could be obtained.

End ticket sales and exchanges in the stations immediately, or close any location that is
not generating sufficient commission income to cover operating costs plus a negotiated
profit margin. Neither of these options may be taken without appropriate analysis and
an adequate public input process, per MTC Resolution 3866 and federal and state Title
Vl-related regulations.

Recommendation: That the Board adopt the following motion.

Motion: That the General Manager be authorized to execute a Change Order to
exercise the final five-year option on Agreement No.6G4435, Operation of Booths for
the Sale of Transit Tickets, to modify the scope of services subject to the conditions
described herein, and to modify the terms of remuneration, including the addition of a
minimum guarantee. The cost of funding the minimum guarantee will not exceed
$70,000 per year for a total not-to-exceed amount of $350,000 for the five-year option
period.

Execute Final 5 Year Contract Option with CDSNet, Inc for Operation of Booths for the Sale of Transit Tickets g



ba

EXECUTIVE DECISION DOCUMENT

%ZL MANAGER AWRM GENERAL MANAGER ACTION REQ'D:

\9/

District Secretary  BA

#l 3
Slgnature!Date\—//Zg% “/{7[ /")\i !E/\Pb}“b 1 \IV

[ ] B\ﬁl
TITLE:

Award of Contract No. 49GG-210, Procurement of New VATC Printed Circuit Boards and
Modules

Ongmator!Prepared by: Kirtland Smith General CT;{’“
Dept: RS&S

NARRATIVE:

PURPOSE.:

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to award Contract No. 49GG-210, for the
Procurement of New VATC Printed Circuit Boards and Modules to LeeMah Electronics, Inc.

DISCUSSION:

The Vehicle Automatic Train Control (VATC) system controls the automatic operation of BART
trains. The system includes equipment located on each control cab railcar as well as related
wayside equipment. This Contract is to replace the printed circuit boards and related hardware
for all railcar-mounted VATC equipment.

The VATC system is responsible for Speed Determination and Control, Auto Mode Operation,
Platform Program Stop, Train Identification, Train Door Control and Train Operator’s Console
Communications. The District's station-housed train control equipment selects pre-computed
speed codes to be transmitted back to the trains using the same hardware associated with the
track circuits used for train detection. The railcar-mounted VATC equipment decodes the
transmitted speed codes and issues propulsion and brake control signals to control train speed.
The Printed Circuit Boards (PCB’s) and Modules perform most information processing
operations of the VATC system.

The existing railcar-mounted VATC equipment has been in operation for more than 25 years.
These units are highly reliable. However, components fail and require replacement. Throughout
the equipment’s life span, spare printed circuit boards have been used to replace failed printed
circuit boards because many of the original components can no longer be repaired or replaced
due to their obsolescence. The wayside VATC equipment is currently being replaced through
award of a separate contract.

This contract will provide for the procurement of two hundred eighty-seven (287) Carsets of
printed circuit boards and modules for the railcar-mounted VATC equipment, with modern
electronic components that will provide operational reliability and ease of installation and
maintenance.

This is an estimated-quantity Contract. Pursuant to the terms of the Contract, the District is




Award of Contract No. 49GG-210, Procurement of New VATC Printed Circuit Boards and Modules

required to purchase from the supplier a minimum amount of fifty percent (50%) of the Contract
Bid price. Upon Board approval of this Contract, the General Manager will also have the
authority to purchase up to one hundred fifty percent (150%) of the Contract Bid price, subject to
availability of funding.

The procurement was advertised on January 6, 2012. An Advance Notice to Bidders was sent to
sixteen prospective bidders on January 6, 2012. A Pre-Bid Meeting was held on January 25,
2012 and was attended by four potential bidders. No addenda were issued for this solicitation.
Two bids were received and publicly opened on February 7, 2012.
Tabulation of the bids, including Engineer's Estimate, is as follows:

Bidder Bid Price (Including 8.75% sales tax)

LeeMah Electronics, Inc., $3,824,271.62
San Francisco, CA

PSI Repair Services, Inc, $9,323.,445.02
Livonia, MI.

Engineer's Estimate: $5,448,375.00

The apparent low bidder, LeeMah Electronics, Inc. was determined to have submitted a
responsive Bid. Examination of LeeMah Electronics, Inc. business experience and financial
capabilities resulted in a determination that the Bidder is responsible. In addition, staff has
determined that the Bid price submitted by LeeMah Electronics, Inc. is fair and reasonable.

Pursuant to the revised DBE Program, the Office of Civil Rights is utilizing race and gender
neutral efforts for procurement contracts. Therefore, no DBE participation goal was set for this
contract.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Funding of $3,824,271.62 for the procurement VATC Printed Circuit Boards and Modules will
come from project budget 49GE001 VATC Boards. The Office of the Controller/Treasurer
certifies that funds are currently available to meet this obligation.

As of 03/8/12, $8,000,000 is available for this project from the following sources:



Award of Contract No. 49GG-210, Procurement of New VATC Printed Circuit Boards and Modules

F/G 6014 — ALLOC #09387205 $346,717

F/G 353K FTA 5309 CA-05-0236 $1,674,436.80

F/G 8523 Surch-STATN 2 ST $47,272.20

F/G 353G _KFTA 5309 CA-05-0224 $1,931.574

F/G 6301 CAP IMP FG Mod $800,000

F/G 3001 — PRJ Match MTC Res #4013 $3,200,000

Total $8,000,000

BART has expended $0, encumbered $1,506,765. and pre-encumbered $142,314 to date. This
action will encumber $3,824,271.62 leaving an available fund balance of $2,526,649.38.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

Any additional orders of VATC Printed Circuit Boards and Modules, over and above the amount
of $3,824,271.62, will only be placed with LeeMah Electronics, Inc. upon certification by the
Controller-Treasurer that funds are available and by Capital Development and Control of the
eligibility of identified funding sources.

There is no fiscal impact on available unprogrammed District Reserves.

ALTERNATIVES:
The alternative to awarding the Contract would be to reject all Bids and readvertise the Contract,
which staff believes is not likely to lead to a better price or more competition.

RECOMMENDATION:
It is recommended that the Board adopt the following motion:

MOTION:

The General Manager is authorized to award Contract No. 49GG-210, an estimated quantity
contract for the Procurement of New VATC Printed Circuit Boards and Modules, to LeeMah
Electronics, Inc., for the Bid price of $3,824,271.62, including applicable taxes, pursuant to
notification to be issued by the General Manager and subject to the District's protest procedures
and FTA’s requirements related to protest procedures. Subject to the availability of funds, the
General Manager is also authorized to increase the value of the Contract to 150% of the award

amount.



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

Memorandum

TE): Board of Directors DATE: March 16, 2012
FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT:  E&O Item #4.B: Oakland Airport Connector Quarterly Project Update — For
Information

The attached presentation for the March 22, 2012 Board meeting provides the quarterly update for the

Oakland Airport Connector project. If you have any questions about this presentation, please contact
Chris Quinn at (510) 464-7539 or Tom Dunscombe at (510) 394-6173.

Whaneca dill oo

Grace Crunicank}

Attachment

ce: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff



SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

MEMORANDUM

TO: Board of Directors DATE: March 16,2012
FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT: E&O Item #4.C: NOBLE Report Management Audit Response Matrix Update —
For Information

At the March 22, 2012 Board of Directors meeting, Chief Kenton Rainey will present the
attached update on a number of the recommendations contained in the NOBLE Management
Audit Report. The NOBLE Audit Report that was completed in April 2010 is broken into 16
chapters that cover 25 key areas of concern and includes 140 major recommendations. NOBLE
recommended that the BART Police Department (BPD) develop its own implementation plan
and work to accomplish that plan within 3 years.

BPD has accepted and/or been working towards implementing 131 of the 140 major
recommendations. Of the 131 recommendations that were accepted, 82 are complete (some have
ongoing actions). The NOBLE Management Audit Response Matrix (BART’s implementation
plan) can be found on the BART website (www.bart.gov).

Although substantial progress has been made on the NOBLE recommendations, there is still
much more work that needs to be done on re-building BPD accountability and management
systems from the ground up. The update on March 22 will cover a number of key initiatives of
interest to the BART Board of Directors and the public, as they relate to improving BPD
management and accountability systems.

Please feel free to contact Chief Rainey if you have questions.

/

. . ‘![I [
G G e,

Grace CrunicanO

cc: Board Appointed Officers
Deputy General Manager
Executive Staff




Alameda CTC Paratransit Program Application - July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013
Table A Attachment: Description of Planned Program

Note: Definltions for each drop-down menu appear as Comments {scroll over the column title or in the Review mode, choose "Show All Comments"), The document is set up to print Comments at the end. -
Service/Program Type and Name Contractor Need(s) Met Cost to Consumer For Trip Provision Services

f i HH & Ban F L £ R i fEnmaii i 3 3
ADA-mandated Paratransit East Bay Paratransit Consortium  |Veofia Transportatation All eligible trips are provide, There {$4.00 to $7.00in the East Bay. Cash or EBPC fare tickets are Accessible Consumers must schedule in Origin-to-Destination  |Alameda and Contra Costa
{EBPC} is no restriction on trip purpose. | 36.00 to $10.00 in SF. accepted. advance Counties, and San Francisco.

Note: Definitlons for each drop-down menu appear as Comments {scrofl over the column title or in the Review mode, choose "Show All Comments"). The document Is set up to print Comments at the end,
Service/Program Type and Name Limits Scheduie Eligibility Status Deliverables Notes

Column A (repeated) CormnBirepeated) |  Columnk |  Columml |  ColmnM |  ColwwnN ]  Comn0 | CoumnP | _ ComnQ | CoumnR |
i

ADA-mandated Paratransit East Bay Paratransit Consortium No limits. :00 am to 5:00 pm, seven daysa  |one to seven days. same hours/days as AC Transit Individuals must have a cognitive  |Continuing or Ongoing 238,624 238,634 passengers transported
{EBPC} week, buses or BART trains operate in or physical impariment that includes compantons and
both the origin and destinaticn prevents use of the accessible FR attendants.A total of 198,546 ADA

[ecation, services of ACTransit & BART passengers will be transported.






Alameda CTC Paratransit Program Application - July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013
Table A Attachment: Description of Planned Program

Ceil: A4
Cornment: Service/Program Type: {See Implementing Guidelines for more information on these service types)
« Management/Qverhead: Program oversight, planning, budgeting, participation in regionalfcountywide meetings. Please include admin/labor even IF 1t Is pald by the City for accurate reporting of full program expenses,
* Customer Service/Outreach: Activitles assoclated with educating consumers about services that are avallable to them, answering questions from consumers and taking, tracking and responding to complaints and commencatlons.
» City-based Door-to-Door: Pre-scheduled, accessible, door-to-doar service provided by city, Provides a similar level of service to mandated ADA services; designed to fill gaps not met by ADA-mandated providers and/or relieve ADA-mandated providers of some trips.
* Taxi Program: Provides a same day, curb-to-curb service intended for situations when consumers cannot make their trip on a pre-scheduled basis; allows eligible consumers to use taxls at a reduced fare.
+ Accessible Fixed-Route Shuttle: Generally accessible vehicles that operate on a fixed route and schedule to serve common trip origins and destinations, e.g. senior centers, medical facilities, grocery stores, BART stations, other transit stations, community centers, commerclal districts, and post offices.
« Group Trips Program: Round-trip accessible van rides for pre-planned oultings or to attend specific events or go to specific destinations for fixed amounts of time, e.g. shopping trips or religlous services. Trips usually originate from a senior center or housing facility,
* Volunteer Driver Program: Pre-scheduled, door-through-door services that are generally not accessible; rely on volunteers to drive eligible consumers for critical trip needs, such as medical trips. May also have an escort component.
» Mobility Management/Travel Training: Covers a wide range of activities, such as travel training, trip planning, and brokerage. Does not include provision of trips. (This is considered "non-trip provision®)
* Scholarship/Subsidized Fare Program: Program to subsidize any service for customers whe are low-lncome and can demonstrate financial need.

+ Meal Delivery {only existing programs are eligible; no new programs can be established): Program to deliver meals to the homes of individuals who are transportation disadvantaged. Currently operating pragrams can continue to use Measure B funds for these service costs, but new meal delivery services cannot be established.
» Capital Expenditure: Any capital purchase or other capital expenditure.

Cell: G4
Comment: Accessibility:
Accessihle: Able to serve consumers with mobtlity devices
Non-Accessible: Not able to serve consumers with mobility devices

Cell: H4
Comment: Timing:
Consumers must schedule trips in advance: To utilize this service, consumer must make a reservation in advance of the day trip is taken,
Consumers can schedule a same day trip: Service is provided on a same-day basis, does not require advance reservation
Please indicate the predominant timing of your service. E.g. if a service is mostly pre-schedule hut takes occaslon same day requests on a space-available basis, please indicate "schedule in advance"

Cell: 14
Comment: Origins and Destinations:
Fixed Route: Service operates on a fixed route with no deviations
Fixed Route with Deviatlons: Senvice operates on a fixed route, but deviates to major orlgins/destinations an accasion, such as a senlor center.
Origin-to-Destination: Service provides curb-to-curb, door-to-door or door-through-door service for consumers.

Cell; H27
Camment: Project Status:
Inltiated In FY 12-13
Continuing or Ongaing
Closed Out in FY 12-13





Alameda CTC Paratransit Program Application - July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013
Table B Attachment: Program Cost

Measure B Cost
Service/Program Name Measure B and Other Funds to be expended on Service/Program Total Cost Cost per Trip per Trip

mm mmm m

o

East Bay Paratransn Consortlum 238,634 $1 551 016. 00 $8,914,147.00 Agency $954,536.00{$11, 419 699 00 $47.85 $43.85
{EBPC) funds:58,888,107; CCC
Meas J: $26,040

238,634 $1,651,016 $0.00 $8,914,147 $954,536 $11,419,699]347.85 e






Alameda CTC Paratransit Program Application - July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013
Table C Attachment: Program Revenue

Row A

Row B

Row C

Row D

RowF

RowE

Row F

Row G

Row H

Row |

Row )

$0.00

$1,551,016.00

$0.00

$8,914,147.00

$10,465,163.00

$954,536.00

$11,419,699.00

$11,419,699.00

$0.00

$775,508.00

($775,508.00}






Alameda CTC Paratransit Program Application - July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013
Table D Attachment: Vehicle Fleet

Instructions: Please complete table below. If necessary, please contact your contractors to obtain the information,

Vehicle Fleet | | | B

" ColumnA | Column® | ColumnC | ColumnD | ColumnE | ColumnF | ColumnG | ColumnH | Column
i g B : A
i jty i

s i ¢ 5
Heh i e y

Ford Crown Sedan gas none 4 0 59| APT/FTI/MVT hfa
Vie
Ford E450 van diesel lift 14 5 32 APT n/a
Chevy E350 van diesel lift 8 4 12 APT n/a
Ford E450 van diesel lift 18 7 3 MVT n/a
Chevy E350 van diesel lift 8 4 12 MVT nfa
Ford E450 van diesel lift 16 2 0 MVT n/a
Ford E450 van gas lift 14 5 14 MVT n/a
Ford E450 van gas lift 18 5 13 MVT n/a
Ford E350 van gas Tift B 2 23 MVT n/a
Chevy E350 van diesel lift 8 4 12 FTI ' n/a
Ford E450 van gas lift 14 5 29 FTI n/a
Sedans: 59
Vans: 148

Total 207






Alameda CTC Paratransit Program Application Page 1
Application Period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013

Agency Name:
Date Submitted:
Submitter Name (Primary Contact for Application}:

Submitter Title:

Sec

Phone Number:
Fax:

E-mail:

Paratransit Program Application

Due by April 2, 2012
Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART)

04/0212

Laura Timothy

Paratransit Programs Manager

Mary Rowlands

ondary Agency Contact Name:
510-464-6446

510-464-6143

Itimoth@b_art.gov

Clearly label additional attachments as needed.

TYPES OF SERVICES PROVIDED

1,

What type of paratransit projects and programs will Measure B fund? To answer this
question, complete the Table A Attachment {Table A Program Description tab) in the Excel
workbook. Describe the projects and/or programs your agency plans to implement with
Measure B funding during fiscal year 2012-2013 (FY 12-13). {See question 1A that follows.)

As noted in the comments in Table A, the following services/programs are eligible for funding
through Measure B:

s Management/Overhead: Program oversight, planning, budgeting, particination in
regional/countywide meetings. Please include admin/labor even if it is paid by the City for
accurate reporting of full program expenses.

» Customer Service/Outreach: Activities associated with educating consumers about services that
are available to them, answering questions from consumers and taking, tracking and responding
to complaints and commendations.

s City-based Door-to-Door: Pre-scheduled, accessible, door-to-door service provided by city.
Provides a similar level of service to mandated ADA services; designed to fill gaps not met by
ADA-mandated providers and/or relieve ADA-mandated providers of some trips.

e Taxi Program: Provides a same day, curb-to-curb service intended for situations when consumers

cannot make their trip on a pre-scheduled basis; allows eligible consumers to use taxis at a
reduced fare.






Alameda CTC Paratransit Program Application Page 2
Application Period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013

e Accessible Fixed-Route Shuttle: Generolly accessible vehicles that operate on a fixed route and
schedule to serve common trip origins and destinations, e.g. senior centers, medical facilities,
grocery stores, BART stations, other transit stations, community centers, commercial districts,
and post offices.

* Group Trips Program: Round-trip accessible van rides for pre-planned outings or to attend
specific events or go to specific destinations for fixed amounts of time, e.g. shopping trips or
religious services. Trips usually originate from a senior center or housing facility.

» Volunteer Driver Program: Pre-scheduled, door-through-door services that are generally not
accessible; rely on volunteers to drive eligible consumers for critical trip needs, such as medical
trips. May also have an escort component.

e Mobility Management/Travel Training: Covers a wide range of activities, such as travel training,
trip planning, and brokerage. Does not include provision of trips. (This is considered "non-trip
provision")

s Scholarship/Subsidized Fare Program: Program to subsidize any service for customers who are
fow-income and can demonstrate financial need.

«  Meal Delivery (only existing programs are eligible; no new programs can be established):
Program to deliver meals to the homes of individuals who are transportation disadvantaged.
Currently operating programs can continue to use Measure B funds for these service costs, but
new meal delivery services cannot be established.

e Copital Expenditure: Any capital purchase or other capital expenditure,

1A.Please provide a short narrative description explaining how the suite of services offered
through your program meets the basic life needs of seniors and people with disabilities in
your community. For example, why have these service types been selected for funding over
other potential service types to meet the trip needs of your consumers? Please reference

each service component listed in Table A Attachment (Table A Program Descripticn tab).
(max. 1,300 characters)

BART's primary objective, as a partner with AC Transit in the East Bay Paratransit Consortium (EBPC) is to
deliver high quality, cost effective paratransit service that meets the six service criteria of the ADA,

No service design changes are planned in FY 12-13, but two efforts will start;
1)The most recent reservations/scheduling system update will be installed & efforts will begin to test an
Interactive Voice Response System (IVR) for functionality & user responsiveness. The system will be

implemented consistent with the requirements of Title VI and with AC Transit and BART's LEP plans.

2) During the fiscal year, BART and AC Transit will conduct a procurement process to establish the next
Broker/Service Provider contract,






Alameda CTC Paratransit Program Application Page 3
Application Period July 1, 2012 through june 30, 2013

2.

Will your planned program for FY 12-13 meet the Paratransit Program Implemention
Guidelines? See the appendix for the implemention guidelines. Programs are not required to
meet the implemention guidelines until FY 13-14. (max. 700 characters)

EBPC meets all federally mandated ADA guidelines.

If proposing service changes from this fiscal year, please describe what changes are
proposed and why. Please describe how these changes will impact the ability of seniors and

people with disabilities in your community to meet their basic life needs. {max. 700
characters)

During the 1st half of the year, the most recent reservations/scheduling system update will be installed &
efforts will begin to test an Interactive Voice Response System {(IVR) for functionality & user responsiveness.

The system will be implemented consistent with the requirements of Title VI and with AC Transit and BART's
LEP plans.

A competitive procurement for the next Broker/Provider contract will be undertaken in FY12-13. Re-
bidding contracts periodically ensures more competitive pricing, keeping costs lower.

DEVELOPMENT OF PROGRAM PLAN

4,

How was consumer input sought in development of your program plan and selection of
the services offered? Describe all activities undertaken in connection with this plan,
including consumer or public meetings; meetings with other agencies; presentations to
boards, commissions, or committees. If possible provide general dates for these activities.
(See questions 4A and 48 that follow; max. 500 characters.)

EBPC staff works with its rider advisory committee, the Service Review Advisory Committee (SRAC), along
with the EBPC executive committee, the Service Review Committee or SRC, when considering any changes
in the ADA paratransit plan or design. Comment and suppaort for the changes is abtained prior to

proceeding with implementation. Meetings of these committees are publicly noticed and public comment
is welcome.






Alameda CTC Paratransit Program Application Page 4«
Application Period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013

4A.

4B.

Has this plan been reviewed by a local paratransit advisory committee?

Yes
D No

If yes, list the committee name and date of the meeting.

EBPC's Service Review Advisory Committee {SRAC) at their March 9, 2012 meeting

Describe any surveys or analysis conducted to develop this plan and to select the range of
services your program offers? {max. 300 characters)

A staff report was provided about the FY12-13 plan at the March 9th meeting to the SRAC and the SRC.
Additionally, EBPC conducts an annual customer satisfaction survey which was presented to the SRACon
February 8th, 2012 and the ACTC's PAPCO committee on January 27, 2012 . See # 6 for more.

Describe how the planning process (e.g., consumer input, surveys and staff analysis} is
connected to the service plan: How do the planned services correspond to the results of
the planning process? {max. 500 characters)

The EBPC planning process is an ongoing continual process designed to accept public comment and SRAC
views on a variety of operational issues that affect service design, The annual customer satisfaction survey is
used to inform and improve service. The SRAC committee is 40-50% minority members who are from riders
and community service organizations. See #19 for additional information.

Did you (or will you) get a Governing Body Resolution to authorize submittal of this plan?
Yes
D No

If yes, please indicate the date that the plan was approved or is scheduled for action:

03/22/2012

OUTREACH

8.

How do potential users of the services learn about what services are available in your
community? (max. 500 characters)

Any outreach on rider information efforts will be conducted consistent with federal and state Title Vliand
related requirements. EBPC informs users about the program with brochures and Rider's Guides, EBPC
information is included on the BART & AC Transit websites and in written materials about the agencies.
EBPC has its own website. Staff conducts a public meeting with its rider committee, the Service Review
Advisory Committee every other month. Please see #19 for additional information.






Alameda CTC Paratransit Program Application Page 5.
Application Period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013

ELIGIBILITY AND ENROLLMENT

9. What is your eligibility process and how do cansumers enroll in your program?
{max. 400 characters)

To be eligible, an applicant must complete both a written application and an in-person interview with the
certification department. An eligibility determination is mailed to the applicant. Occasionally, medical
verification might be required. Every 3-years the applicant must re-certify.

10. How long does it take for an applicant to be enrolled in your program and become eligible
to utilize the services offered? (max. 400 characters)

©nce the interview & written application are complete, applicants may use services upon receipt of their
determination letter, assuming they are found eligible. If a determination has not been made within 21
days after the application and interview are complete, the ADA requires the agency to provide presumptive
eligibility and service for that applicant until the determination is made.

EXPECTED USE OF SERVICES

11. How many consumers do you estimate will be registered in your program in FY 12-13?
Fill in the box below. (See question 11A that follows.)

Estimated Registrants in FY 12-13
22,500

11A. Do you expect your program registration to increase, decrease or stay the same compared
to this fiscal year? Why? (max. 300 characters)

~ [The EBPC budget for FY 12-13 includes a projected increase in enrollment. This is generally due to the
aging of the population and the increasing dependence on ADA programs for social service transportation.

12, Do you expect the total number of one-way trips provided by your program to increase,
decrease or stay the same compared to this fiscal year? Why? (max. 300 characters}

EBPC budgeted transportation of 769,787 passengers, including attendants (14% of passengers) and
companions (1.5% ). BART's portion is 238,634. This is an increase of 12,000 more passengers than in FY
11-12. An expected 640,470 ADA passengers will be transported. BART's portion is 198,546.






Alameda CTC Paratransit Program Application Page 6.
Application Period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013

CUSTOMER SATISFACTION

13. Describe your complaint and commendation process. Describe your process from
beginning to end, including instructions you provide to customers for filing complaints or
- commendations, your documentation procedures and your follow up.
{See guestions 13A and 13B that follow; max. 500 characters.)

Complaints received by the Broker's Office are responded to & tracked by type. Complaint details are used
to determine areas of the service needing attention and to improve the service through attention to
individual employees or through modification of service practices. Complaints received are directed to the

appropriate provider awaiting a response. A penalty is assessed if responses are not received in a timely
fashion. Commendations are also shared with employees.

13A. Describe any common or recurring complaints your program has received.
(max. 500 characters)

Complaints are summarized into the following categories: Driver complaints; on-time performance issues;
vehicle problems; scheduling concerns; and Broker complaints. Staff reviews complaint statistics every
month. Every two months the SRAC receives a report with a complaints summary.

13B. Describe any changes you have made to your program as a result of customer
complaints and commendations.
(max. 500 characters)

1) The Operations Manager reviews driver/dispatcher complaints with Service Provider
management once month and follows-up o ensure the driver/dispatcher has been retrained or
disciplined. 2} a phone system recording all calls, is installed at the Broker's for monitoring and
training of call center agents. 3) Recently, EBPC changed the advance reservation period from

seven to three days, which proved unpopular. After testing it for 6 months, EBPC staff returned to
the 7-day advance period.

VEHICLE FLEET

14. Please provide details regarding your vehicle fleet. To answer this question, complete
the Table D Attachment (Table D Vehicle Fleet tab) in the Excel workbook.

CAPITAL PURCHASES

15. Describe planned capital expenditures, such as purchase of vehicles or durable
equipment, below. {(max. 255 characters)






Alameda CTC Paratransit Program Application Page 7
Application Period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2013

FINANCES: PROGRAM COSTS AND REVENUE

16.

17.

18,

Please complete Table B and C Attachments (Table B Program Costs and Table C
Program Revenues tabs) in the Excel workbook to indicate the total expected costs and
revenues for your program in FY 12-13.

If you anticipate an undesignated reserve by the end of FY 12-13 (see cell C10 in the
Table C Attachment in the Excel workbook), how do you plan to use these undesignated
reserve Measure B funds? {max. 300 characters)

FPBC does not anticipate a reserve,

In Table A, you may have indicated funding for “Management/Overhead” and
“Customer Service and Outreach.” Please describe what costs are included in these two
categories and how you determined these cost allocations? The definition of these two
categories is included in question 1.

Management/Overhead {max. 350 characters)

Customer Service and Outreach {max. 350 characters)

MISCELLANEOUS

19,

If you have any additional notes or clarifications you would like to provide about your
program plan, please include them here. (max. 500 characters)

Staff regularly attends outreach and educational events to provide information. EBPC has Multi-
lingual staff available for customer services and outreach events. The phone tree allows selection
of languages other than English. EBPC works closely with many organizations supporting low
income individuals and meets with agencies and individuals to provide information.







Oakland Airport Connector
Quarterly Project Report

E&O Committee
March 22, 2012






1. Budget Review

2. Project Progress
3. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
4. Local Hiring

5. Questions & Answers

BART Oakland Airport Connector 2





Project Budget Review

Budget at Estimated

Award Invoiced to Date| Cost to Forecast at
Description (Nov 1, 2010)| (Jan 31, 2012) | Complete | Completion
FEIR, PE & Pre Utility
relocations 20.1 20.1 0.0 20.1
ROW 12.1 11.8 0.3 12.1
Insurance 9.9 7.1 2.8 9.9
BART Contract Oversight 37.1 14.6 22.5 37.1
DB Construction Contract 361.0 141.9 219.1 361.0
Contract Changes *%*2.9 1.4 2.4 3.8
Construction Contingency 33.0 0.0 32.1 32.1
Finance Expense 8.0 0.0 8.0 8.0
Subtotal 484.1 196.9 287.2 484.1

**$2.88M Inflationary Price Adjustment approved by the Board prior to NTP






Design Progress b

e Stations issued for construction

e Steel superstructure designs nearing 100%

* Vehicle & Systems designs underway

BART Oakland Airport Connector 4





Construction Progress

* On-airport guideway columns

* Airport Station foundation
* Doolittle undercrossing
* Hegenberger median guideway columns

* Coliseum Station foundation

BART Oakland Airport Connector )





Construction Progress

e

s SOARAIpOrt
: _';.'_ - )ﬁz\‘ S

Airport DAVE

BART Oakland Airport Connector 6






Construction Progress

Connector
Station

BART Oakland Airport Connector






Superstructure Fabrication b

= Completed welding and mockup of test segment

» Tests show excellent quality

BART Oakland Airport Connector 8





Vehicle Progress

1st car shell fabrication complete " = ===

-
Caracas vehicles | m = N

BART Oakland Airport Connector 9





Systems Progress

BART Oakland Airport Connector






Test Track

BART Oakland Airport Connector






Look Ahead

Activity Estimated Finish

Final Civil Designs November 2010 mid 2012
Guideway Construction June 2011 April 2013
Maintenance & Storage Facility July 2011 August 2013
Coliseum Station Construction September 2011 May 2013
Airport Station Construction September 2011 May 2013
System Testing July 2013 May 2014

12





Disadvantaged Business s

Enterprise (DBE) Utilization

Flatiron/Parsons JV - DBE Payment Summary
Source: DBE Payment Reports through 01/15/12

Actual Paid % thru
CATEGORY OF WORK DBE COMMITMENT thru 01/15/12 01/15/12

CATEGORY I:
Design and Professional Services S 7,633,000 S 6,471,393 85%
14 DBEs Paid
CATEGORY II:
Construction and Trucking S 31,169,000 S 7,553,122 24%
10 DBEs Paid
TOTAL DBE Commitment and Participation S 38,802,000 S 14,024,515 36%

13

BART Oakland Airport Connector






Local Hiring Program

Flatiron / Parsons JV — Labor Report
Source: Elation System — Certified Payroll Reports through 01/31/12

Contractor
Performance

Project Stabilization Agreement (PSA) Goals | PSA Goal 11/02/10 - 01/31/12

All Labor

Local Area Residents - BART Counties

Alameda, SF, Contra Costa, and San Mateo 50% 63.7%
Project Local Impact Area - City of Oakland 25% 24.0%
Apprentice Labor (% of total labor hours) 20% 13.4%
Local Area Residents 100% 100%
Project Local Impact Area - City of Oakland 50% 71.4%

BART Oakland Airport Connector 14






Questions and Answers

BART Oakland Airport Connector 15






		Oakland Airport Connector�Quarterly Project Report 

		Agenda

		Project Budget Review

		Design Progress 

		Construction Progress

		Construction Progress

		Construction Progress

		Superstructure Fabrication

		Vehicle Progress

		Systems Progress

		Test Track

		Look Ahead

		Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Utilization

		Local Hiring Program

		Questions and Answers




NOBLE Report Update
Chief Kenton W. Rainey

BART Board of Directors
March 22, 2012





Agenda

* Background
 NOBLE Report Updates/Information

* Update Topics:
Chapter 6 - Racial Profiling/Training
Chapter 6 - Racial Profiling/Data Collection
Chapter 10 - Context Background/Need for Police Department
Chapter 12 - Use of Force/Reporting
Chapter 14 — Operations/Comp Stat
Chapter 14 — Operations/Crime Analysis






BACKGROUND

 NOBLE Audit Report was completed in April 2010

e Report includes 16 chapters, 25 key concerns, and
140 major recommendations

e 82 of the NOBLE recommendations have been
completed, 9 were not accepted

* BPD continues to progress on completing the
outstanding recommendations






NOBLE Report
Updates/Information

Update on status of NOBLE Management Audit Report
recommendations is completed every six months

NOBLE Management Audit Response Matrix is posted on
the BART website: www.bart.gov

BPD Review Special Committee briefed quarterly
Citizen Review Board briefed monthly

General Manager briefed monthly




http://www.bart.gov/



Chapter 6: Racial Profiling

Issue: POST Mandated Training

Recommendation: All officers should receive instructor
led training on racial profiling

Issue: Data Collection

Recommendation: BART PD should expand their
current data collection method to record additional
data.






Chapter 10: Context Background: Community Context
Issue: Should BART have a Police Department

Pittsburg/
Richmond PSA 1 PSA 4 Bay Point
A\ EI Cerrito del Norte NOfthd :
Pittsburg/Bay Point — SFO Line I Corriio Plaza Zon foncorc/Mantine2
B Dublin/Pleasanton — Daly City Line Concord
; _ > North Berkeley PSA 2 Pleasant Hill/
Richmond — Fremont Line Contra Costa Centre
pmmmm Fremont — Daly City Line R e eie Walnut Creek
(no evening or Sunday service) Ashby
Richmond — Millbrae Line
== (no evening or Sunday service) H Orinda Lafayette PSA 3
OOOO Transfer Station Rockridge
Q BART Parking PSA 1 / b~ MacArthur
/ timed transfer (southbound)
Z 3 West Oakland / / Jrggg] tr«Saggra(ll':(olgl%gund)
onc dl. 12th St/Oakland City Center
PSA 1 Embarcadero / e\ - Lake Merritt PSA 2
Montgomery St \ Fruitvale
Powell St l l Q
Coliseum/Oakland Airport (OAK
Civic Center/UN Plaza Zone \\\ B ( )
16th St Mission ///// & \ \\ San Leandro PSA 1
o / Oakland £& \ Bay Fair -
Fatuist Mission /// International ?g \.0. : DUblln/
Glen Park /// Airport (OAK) g Castro Valley Pleasanton
Balboa Park ./// _
Daly City 3L 1A PSA 2 N\ ’ West Dublin/
& 7} Hayward Pleasanton
PSA 1 g
Q Zone 2
Colma ‘«,'2 Zone 4 South Hayward
South 12\ PSA 2
San Francisco” San Francisco
NN International Airport (SFO) Union City
San Bruno .’,H
¢' ~§ fi
EEEEEE MON-FRI before 7pm ’—,‘ -:’ %u:crm sMA?'\s:LmI;//?Qy - I
PSA 2 Millbrae Fremont

© 2011 BART






Chapter 12: Use of Force
Issue: Requirement for Use of Force Reporting




http://ctt.marketwire.com/?release=853847&c=25&s=1892786&url=http://www.taserbranding.com/press-images-axon-flex/



Chapter 14: Operations
Issue: Records Management System — Comp Stat

.
CRavES =t | m am | i Taore |, - Traln Holds Over 5 Minutes
: I N N N B B BART Police Performance Measurements |«
—1 MW W] w | n :‘ :
[ oo Aasau W | 5| x| #] 2|8 | &
Pckoet v St | 64 | 54 |08 [ n [ o | 34 | % | =% February 2012 P
Pagarty woayia o " r 1 " 1 2 o
oy FEET) X3 P X ) B B
nss et e | 03 [ars | | w0 | e | e | aw !
= s o]z} 2 [ [] [ v/
operty T | 2ans | e| sam| et | 2 | am | = "
| A | 500 | 3004 | 20| e | 3w | am | i YT RIEYn
Electronk ltem Thefts TOTAL AUTO CRIMES Total Bike Thefts DD Open Cases & % Closed  Too3dmthons Fer Pact A s
-, ~ L - T lovau Maltmas
ul n ® = 5 Cuters s
k] - R oyt
. - S B e b
- - - -y Vot i
5 = - - - :--—- Bl lod Dbt
A Bt by Sy ietsegiey Z - —mt
X - - o e ] e e
il | A )| | o —: = < ,
R RO TR D CriiEginrteged YR EIE |
Arrests & Craticns Total Parkieg Crations Total Parking Enforcement Total Calls To ISRC (Dispatch) Rog. Response Time
- ¥ T — Comphaints - To Emergencies (Mia.)
- - - - o ey
- -l a - 3
= [roe. P - S —-— '
[P s T -
- vl b Ok Lo ® -
_ .#— Camparn 0 BTV ve—
» :ll. - -
YOI, RO YD TSN, TR eI CTEgesateraiet
1A Complaits Total Commendations Wittes Evployee Injuries Staffieg Vacancies OT Costs vs. Budget YTO
Bl = H R (Variance)
. . LY T ke | ]
of . o | )
“1 CTPS ) b [ Saman | [T ‘ ]
g ; I h oo | [ —
1 ‘I - I ) E——
YT TR EE 1I b1 i LEE R PR L] NI R T e






Chapter 14: Operations
Issue: Crime Analysis

Zone 1/ HQ Oakland Coliseum- COS Fruitvale- FVS
Year

0 0 0 0

Ridership Data /Entry (Month total 327,502 353,844 350,067 393,409






NOBLE Report Update

QUESTIONS?






SAN FRANCISCO BAY AREA RAPID TRANSIT DISTRICT

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE

Revised February 2012

PROGRAM

Submitted To

FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION
REGION NINE
211 MAIN STREET, ROOM 1122
SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111

EFFECTIVE FEBRUARY 2012

BART





1.
Il.
V.

VI.
VII.

VIII.

XI.

StAteMENT OF POIICY ....ooviieie e e 4

(@] o] [T (Y= OSSR 4
APPHCADTHTY ... 5
Responsibility for DBE Program Implementation and Administration................... 5
F AN = To =T o o) BT =T o] TSR 5
B.  GENEIAl IMBNAJET ..ottt 5
C.  Office Of CiVIl RIGNTS ..ottt 5
D. Procurement and Materials Management...........cccooevererieinenineneneneeeeeeee e 7
E. Office of the General COUNSEL..........cocvviieieeieiceee e e 7
F. Board Appointed Officers, Executive Officers, Department Managers and District
SEATT bbbttt naeee 7
G. BuUSINESS AdVISOrY COMIMITIEE .......ccvevvieieieieeieie ettt s ae st ra e be e ens 7
H. American Public Transit Association's Diversity Council and the Conference of
Minority Transportation OffiCIalS...........cceiriririnereeeeee e 7
L. OMBDUASPEISON ..ottt ettt ettt ebe e nes 7
AdMINIStrative REQUITEMENTS........coiiiiiiiiieii e 8
A. DBE Financial INSUTULIONS.........cociiiiirieieieceiserese ettt 8
B. CUCP DBE DIFECIONY ...cuiciitietieiie ittt ettt ettt te st teesaestesreetesbeessesteesaenaesanenes 8
C.  OVEICONCENTIALION ...cvveieiieiieiicte ettt sttt ettt st b st e s e e e e eseesesseeneseens 8
D. Race & Gender Neutral Efforts to Attain DBE Goals.........cccccvvevirenenenieieccrene 8
E. Small Business DBE Program EIBMENtS...........cccvevirienieinininnenereeeeeeeese e 9
T B 1= ] @ 1 =T Vol o OSSR 10
G. SUPPOItIVE SEIrVICES PrOgIam ..cc.ooueieieiieiieiireertestesteetete ettt 10
H.  Mentor-Protégé PrOgrams .........coccceieirieririenieienieiesteiesie sttt ese s sse e ssenens 10
L. HEANING OFFICET .ttt sbe e 10
J. Unified Certification Program.........c.cccceeeiririeninierieteieeeesiesie ettt 10
K. Transit Vehicle Manufacturer Certification ...........cccocvevevereenienienereeeee e 11
L. Caltrans Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program ..........cccocceeevieeeeveeneesesennens 11
Triennial DBE GOalS........ccooiiiieiieeciese e 11
Contract-Specific DBE GOalS...........cccciiiiiiiese e 12
DBE ENGIDIITY ...oveeeee et nne e 12
A. Disadvantaged BUsiness ENTEIPIiSE ......cooviuieeiieieiiceciece ettt 12
B.  SmMall BUSINESS CONCEIT .....eouiiiiriiriiieieieieitete ettt ettt sbe e nes 12
C. Socially and Economically Disadvantaged Individuals.........c.ccccoceevviencieniecenennenen. 12
D.  Personal Net WOITN .......cooi i 13
E. Non-Residence CertifiCation ..........oooeiieieiririreniesierieieeeeei et 13
Procedures to Ascertain Eligibility and Utilization of DBES...........ccccccoceviiineneee. 14
A, DBE CertifiCation ......cceeueieieieiseseseseee ettt see 14
B, TEIMINALION ..ottt ettt et et et e e seebenaennan 15
C. Remedies for NON-COmMPIIANCE .........ocieierireeee e 15
D. Counting and Tracking DBE PartiCipation...........ccccoeecerereeieneneeereeeere e 15
Required CoNtract ProViSIONS .........cccciiuiiiiiiiie et 16
A, NoNdiSCrmMINALION ASSUFANCE.......ccererieieiieiietirtestestesteseesteteresse e stessesse et enessessesaeseens 16
B. Prompt Payment Policy and ProviSiONS.........cccceecevereesieneeiesieseeeeseeeesee e ssesreennens 16
Contract Compliance and RepPOrting ........ccccvevieiiiiiiie i 17
AL BIOAEES LIS ..ttt st sttt ettt besae st 17
B. Reporting to the US Department of Transportation ..........c.ccccceeeeevevieceneneeseseennens 17
C. Other Reporting ReQUIFEMENTS........ccveciereieeieseetests e see e sre e e sreesae e sseesesneennas 18





XIl.

XII.

XIV.

Public Participation and Outreach for the Triennial Goal..............c..cooeeiveiiiinnnns 18

A, PUDLIC PartiCiPation ........ccooveiiiiieieseeeese ettt sttt s re et st re s 18
MIISCEIHTANEOUS. ...ttt bbb bbb enes 18
A Program REVIEW..........couiiiiiieiiiieiesteseeee ettt sttt ettt st st b et naen 18
B, SEVEIADIIILY ..o 18
C. EXPIFALION ..ttt ettt ee 18
Special Requirements for Design/Build Contracts Under Public Contract Code . 19
A, Category Of WOIK GOalS........cc.ocveiiiiieiee ettt sve e st 19
B. DBE Participation Credit for Second Tier Subcontractors.........c..cccceeeveverenencrene. 19
C. Bonding Waiver for SUDCONTIACES........c.coctriririnierieieieeeeeere e e 19
D. DBE Cost-Loaded SCNedUIE...........ccerieieieieireresteeccee e 19
E.  PRESEd GOAIS ......cceouiiiieieieie et 19

3|Page





Statement of Policy

It is the policy of the San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District ("BART” or the
"District™) to ensure nondiscrimination on the basis of race, color, sex, or national origin in the
award and administration of federally funded contracts. It is the intention of the District to
create a level playing field on which a Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (“DBE”) or Small
Business (“SB”) can compete fairly for federally funded agreements, contracts and
subcontracts, including but not limited to construction, procurement and proposal contracts,
professional and technical services agreements and purchase orders.

As a recipient of federal funds, the District is committed to carrying out all requirements of 49
CFR Part 26, establishing and maintaining the District’s DBE Program (the “DBE Program”
or “Program”). The District's DBE Program will assure that all federally funded contracts and
procurements are administered without discrimination on the basis of race, color, sex or
national origin, and that DBEs and SBs have an equal opportunity to compete for and
participate in the performance of all federally funded agreements, contracts and subcontracts
awarded by the District. The District will implement its DBE Program in good faith and shall
not permit the use of race or gender conscious quotas or set-asides in its administration.

The District's General Manager is responsible for adherence to this DBE Program and has
overall responsibility for directing development and implementation of this Program. The
General Manager has designated the Department Manager of the Office of Civil Rights as the
DBE Liaison Officer (the “Liaison Officer”). The Liaison Officer will be responsible for
development, implementation and monitoring of the DBE Program. It is the expectation of
the Board of Directors and the General Manager that the provisions of this DBE Program will
be adhered to both in the spirit and letter by all District personnel. This Policy will be
circulated to District employees and made available to the public.

This DBE Program is intended to implement the federal requirements pertaining to the DBE
Program, including, but not limited to, 49 CFR Part 26 as amended. In the event of any
inconsistencies between the terms of the District's DBE Program and the terms of 49 CFR Part
26 as amended, the latter will prevail.

Objectives
The objectives of this DBE Program are to:

1. Ensure nondiscrimination in the award and administration of federally funded contracts;

2. Create a level playing field on which DBEs and SBs can compete fairly for federally
funded contracts;

3. Help remove barriers to DBE and SB participation in the bidding, award and
administration of District contracts;

4. Assist in the development of DBE and SB firms that can compete successfully in the
market place outside of the DBE Program;

5. Ensure that only firms that fully meet the eligibility standards of 49 CFR Part 26 are

4|Page





permitted to participate as DBEs;

6. Ensure that the DBE Program is narrowly tailored in accordance with applicable law.

7. ldentify business enterprises that are qualified as DBEs or SBs and are qualified to
provide the District with materials, equipment, supplies and services; and to develop a
good rapport with the owners and management of those enterprises;

8. Develop programs and procedures which will acquaint prospective DBEs and SBs with
the District's contract procedures, activities and requirements and allow DBEs and SBs to
provide the District with feedback on existing barriers to participation and effective
procedures to eliminate those barriers;

9. Facilitate race-neutral competition by SB concerns through the implementation of Small
Business Elements of the DBE Program(“SB Elements”); and

10. Administer the DBE Program in close coordination with the various departments within
the District so as to facilitate the successful implementation of this Program.

Applicability

Pursuant to 49 CFR Sections 26.3 and 26.21, the District, as a recipient of federal financial
assistance from the Federal Transit Administration (“FTA”) of the United States Department
of Transportation (“DOT?), is required to implement a DBE Program in accordance with 49
CFR Part 26. The DBE Program outlined herein applies to all District contracts that are
funded, in whole or in part, by the DOT, including those awarded by the District’s
Subrecipients, in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26.13, 26.21 and 26.23 and 26.37.

Subrecipients are responsible for adhering to the District’s DBE Program and to 49 CFR Part
26 in its entirety. This includes compliance with all Appendices to this document. The
Liaison Officer shall ensure that all Subrecipients adhere to the letter and the spirit of the
District’s DBE Program.

In the administration of the DBE Program, the District will not directly or through
contractual or other arrangements, use criteria or methods of administration that have the
effect of defeating or substantially impairing the accomplishment of the objectives of this
DBE Program with respect to individuals of a particular race, color, sex or national origin.

Responsibility for DBE Program Implementation and Administration

A. Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing DBE policy.

B. General Manager
The District's General Manager is responsible for adherence to this DBE Program and has
overall responsibility for directing development and implementation of this Program

C. Office of Civil Rights
The Department Manager has been designated by the General Manager as the Liaison
Officer, as referenced in 49 CFR Part 26.25. The Liaison Officer shall be responsible for

5|Page





overseeing the DBE Program, recommending DBE policy, developing and implementing a
written DBE program and internal and external communication procedures. Pursuant to 49
CFR Part 26.25, the Liaison Officer shall have adequate staff to administer the District’s
DBE Program and shall have direct and independent access to the General Manager.

The Liaison Officer shall be responsible for all aspects of the DBE Program as outlined in
this document, and he or she will work closely with operating divisions and other
departments and consultants of the District, including the Office of the General Counsel, the
Department of Procurement and Materials Management, the Department of Maintenance and
Engineering, and other departments which are responsible for making decisions relative to
the District's agreements, contracts and subcontracts, including but not limited to
construction, procurement and proposal contracts, professional and technical services
agreements and purchase orders.

The specific duties and responsibilities of the Liaison Officer or his/her designee(s) will
include but not be limited to the following:

1. Gathering and reporting statistical data and other information as required by FTA and
the Board of Directors;

2. Working with appropriate departments to establish overall DBE goals;

3. Ensuring timely notification to the DBE community of bid and contract opportunities;

4. Identifying and implementing race-neutral methods of achieving DBE participation and
evaluating the success of such methods, including race-neutral SB participation;

5. Analyzing and assessing the available resources and evidence for the establishment and
achievement of an overall DBE participation goal;

6. Analyzing District progress toward DBE goal attainment, and identifying ways to
improve progress;

7. Monitoring overall DBE participation, adjusting overall goals and means of
achievement, and reporting to the District, the Board and FTA as needed,;

8. Participating in the contract bid and award process including establishing contract-
specific DBE goals where appropriate, reviewing contract specifications, attending pre-
bid, pre-proposal and pre-construction meetings to explain the DBE Program, to respond
to questions from contractors and proposers and evaluating bids for contractor
responsiveness, responsibility and good faith efforts;

9. Advising the General Manager and Board of Directors on DBE matters;

10. Maintaining and updating the DBE Directory in accordance with 49 CFR Section 26.31,

11. Maintaining and updating the Bidders List in accordance with 49 CFR Section 26.11;

12. Implementing race-neutral measures to facilitate DBE participation such as outreach,
matchmaking, small business program elements, other communication programs,
training and business development programs, restructuring and unbundling contracting
opportunities, simplifying bonding, surety and insurance requirements or other race-
neutral means identified as necessary to the success of the District’s DBE Program;

13. Assessing the critical technical and fiscal management needs of DBE firms; Planning
and conducting DBE training and providing technical assistance;

14. Providing outreach to DBEs and community organizations with advice on DBE Program
issues and contract opportunities;

15. Determining all initial certification actions for DBE and small businesses elements,

6|Page





including certifications, annual updates, denials and removals;

16. Participating in the implementation of a statewide Unified Certification Program in
accordance with 49 CFR Section 26.81;

17. Maintaining all necessary records and documentation of the DBE Program.

18. Developing and implementing the SB Elements of the District’s DBE Program.

D. Procurement and Materials Management

The Department Manager is responsible for ensuring that the appropriate provisions of the
DBE Program are included in all District contracts that are federally funded and for ensuring
non-discrimination in the District's procurement of goods and services. The Department
Manager is also responsible for ensuring the engagement of OCR staff with other District
staff during project design and conception phases to ensure that contracting will be done in a
manner best suited to facilitate DBE and SBE involvement.

E. Office of the General Counsel
The Office of the General Counsel is responsible for advising the Board of Directors, the
General Manager, and the Office of Civil Rights in the implementation of the DBE Program.

F. Board Appointed Officers, Executive Officers, Department Managers and District
Staff

All Board appointed officers, executive officers, department managers and District staff are

responsible for the implementation of the DBE Program in their respective areas of authority

in coordination with the Liaison Officer. The performance of the executive officers,

department managers and District staff in the implementation of the DBE Program shall be a

part of their employee performance appraisal.

G. Business Advisory Committee

The Business Advisory Committee serves as a forum for communication between the DBE
and SB contracting communities and the District and makes general recommendations on
DBE/SB policies and practices that impact DBE/SB utilization and participation in District
contracts.

H. American Public Transit Association's Diversity Council and the Conference of
Minority Transportation Officials

The American Public Transit Association's (“APTA”) Diversity Council and the Conference

of Minority Transportation Officials (COMTO) serve as a forum for discussion of actions

that impact minority and women in the transit industry and provide educational resources on

current transit industry developments.

I. Ombudsperson

The Office of Civil Rights, in consultation with the project staff, on a contract-by-contract
basis, may assign an individual to act as an Ombudsperson for subcontractors and suppliers
of any tier that are DBEs or small business firms. The Ombudsperson may be available to
any such firm that is experiencing difficulties in any aspect of its contract work on contracts
awarded by the District. Such subcontractor or supplier will not be relieved of any of its

7|Page





duties, rights, or obligations under its subcontract during the review by the Ombudsperson.
The Ombudsperson may be empowered to act as a mediator or fact-finder in disputes
between a prime contractor and such subcontractor or supplier, and may make
recommendations to the Office of Civil Rights and the project staff. (See Appendix G.)

Administrative Requirements

A. DBE Financial Institutions

Pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.27, the Liaison Officer will identify and explore the range of
services offered by banks and other financial institutions that qualify as DBEs in the San
Francisco Bay Area and determine areas in which the District may reasonably utilize their
services. The District will also encourage its prime contractors to use the services of DBE
financial institutions.

B. CUCP DBE Directory

BART is a member of the CUCP, which maintains the DBE directory pursuant to 49CFR
26.81 that identifies all firms that are eligible to participate as DBEs in this Program. The
District uses the DBE directory as a resource in developing overall and contract-specific
DBE participation goals and conducting outreach and other programs for DBEs and SBs.

The CUCP DBE directory is available to contractors and the public electronically on the
internet as well as in print. The UCP updates the electronic version by including additions,
deletions, and other changes as soon as they are made. The DBE directory includes the firms
name, address, telephone number and types of work (utilizing the North American Industry
Classification System (NAICS) for which the firm is certified as a DBE. Additionally, the
DBE directory includes, whenever possible, the date the firm was established, the legal
structure of the firm, the percentage owned by disadvantaged individuals, capacity, previous
work experience and a contact person. A listing in the DBE directory does in any way pre-
qualify the identified DBE firms with respect to licensing, bondability, competence or
financial responsibility.

C. Overconcentration

Pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.33, if the Liaison Officer determines that DBE participation is
so over-concentrated in certain types of work or contracting opportunities that it unduly
burdens the participation of non-DBEs in that type of work, the Liaison Officer will develop
appropriate measures to address the overconcentration. The Liaison Officer will seek
approval from the FTA. Once approved, the measures will become part of this Program.

Measures to address DBE overconcentration in a particular field may include, but are not
limited to the following:

1. Developing ways to assist DBEs to move into nontraditional areas of work;
2. Varying the use of contract-specific DBE goals;
3. Working with prime contractors to find and use DBEs in other industry areas;

D. Race & Gender Neutral Efforts to Attain DBE Goals
8|Page





Pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.51, the District will achieve as much of its overall DBE goal
as possible by using race neutral efforts to facilitate DBE participation. Race-neutral efforts
may include, but are not limited to, the following:

1. Arranging solicitations, times for presentation of bids, quantities, specifications, and
delivery schedules in ways that facilitate DBE and other small businesses participation;

2. Providing assistance in overcoming limitations such as inability to obtain bonding or

financing;

Providing technical assistance and other similar services;

4.  Providing information and communication programs on contracting and business
procedures as well as specific contract opportunities;

5. Implementing a supportive service program to develop and improve immediate and
long-term business management, record keeping, and financial and accounting
capability for DBEs and other SBs;

6. Providing services to help DBEs and other SBs improve long-term development,
increase opportunities to participate in a variety of kinds of work, handle increasingly
significant projects, and achieve eventual self-sufficiency;

7.  Establishing a program to assist new, start-up firms, particularly in fields in which
participation by SBs has been historically low;

8.  Ensuring distribution of the District's DBE data base through print and electronic means
to the widest feasible range of potential prime contractors;

9. Assisting DBEs and other SBs to develop their capability to utilize emerging
technology and conduct business through electronic media;

10. Unbundling larger contracts when feasible into a series of manageable projects to
facilitate participation by SBs;

11. Conducting internal training seminars to facilitate better understanding among project
managers and engineers regarding the DBE Program objectives;

12. Maintain a web site containing information on DBE certification, DBE Program, DBE
procedures and a database of DBE firms;

13. Ensuring that the District’s SB Elements are open and available to all small businesses,
including DBEs.

w

E. Small Business DBE Program Elements

In accordance with 49 CFR Section 26.39, the District will establish Small Business DBE
Program Elements (“SB Elements”) as part of its DBE Program. DBEs are SBs and thus
having an active and effective SB element to its DBE Program will assist the District in
achieving as large a portion of its overall goal as possible through race-neutral means. The
SB Elements will include all reasonable steps to eliminate obstacles to small business
participation on the District’s contracts. This includes, but is not limited to:

1. Race neutral SB goals on DOT funded contracts;
2. Contract set asides for SBs on DOT funded contracts;

As a component of the SB Elements the District shall establish a means to certify small

businesses and track information on the certified small businesses. The District shall develop
procedures to gather and report statistical data on the SB Elements of its DBE Program.

9|Page





The Liaison Officer will ensure that the SB Elements integrate with and complement the
District’s other race-neutral DBE Program efforts. The Liaison Officer shall work in
conjunction with all projects at the earliest stages of project development to ensure that the
projects have, to the fullest extent feasible, been developed in a way that encourages DBE or
SB participation.

F. DBE Outreach

One method of providing race-neutral efforts for DBE and SB participation will be through
the District's DBE Outreach Program (the “Outreach Program™). The Liaison Officer shall
be responsible for identifying the most effective type(s) of outreach and implementing
outreach. Outreach includes but is not limited to contract-specific outreach, matchmaking,
vendor fairs, general outreach and outreach to community based organizations (CBOs) and
contractor or business groups.

G. Supportive Services Program

The District may provide a Supportive Services Program to assist DBEs and SBs. The
District may also refer DBEs and SBs to outside resources for assistance. This assistance
may include but is not limited to general instruction and training in bid preparation,
scheduling, estimating, procurement, change order preparation, negotiations, force account
invoicing, certified payroll preparation, insurance, bonding and financing required for a
District project. The Supportive Services Program is not intended to substitute for the
performance of any contractual requirements by the DBE and SB firms. It is expected that
DBE and SB firms will perform these tasks themselves with the assistance of such general
training as may be available. Any information or assistance provided by the District will not
relieve the prime contractor of the responsibility to manage subcontractor activities.

H. Mentor-Protégé Programs

A mentor protégé program allows a prime contractor to mentor a DBE firm so that the DBE
firm can gain experience in the all phases of the construction industry, thereby enhancing the
capacity of the DBE firm. Should the Liaison Officer determine that a mentor protégé
program would be an effective way to facilitate race-neutral DBE participation, a program
will be developed.

I. Hearing Officer

In accordance with 49 CFR Sections 26.53(d)(2) and 26.87(e) and as described more fully in
appendices E and F, all proceedings by the District in connection with the removal of
certification or reconsideration of a determination that a bidder has not met the DBE goal or
used good faith efforts will be heard by an outside independent hearing officer selected in
accordance with District procedures. The party or individual requesting the reconsideration
or hearing shall equally bear the burden of payment of any fees or costs associated with the
independent hearing officer with the District.

J. Unified Certification Program

A Memorandum of Agreement (the “MOA”) for a Statewide Unified Certification Program
has been developed by California transportation agencies that are recipients of federal funds
in accordance with 49 CFR Part 26. The MOA was accepted by the Secretary of the U.S.

10|Page





VI.

Department of Transportation and is effective as of January 1, 2002. There are two certifying
clusters in California: Northern and Southern. BART is among the certifying agencies within
the Northern California cluster.

K. Transit Vehicle Manufacturer Certification

Each transit vehicle manufacturer, as a condition of being authorized to bid or propose on
FTA-assisted transit vehicle procurements, must certify that it has complied with the
requirements of 49 CFR Section 26.49, including the establishment of an annual overall DBE
participation goal that has been submitted to the FTA and either approved, or not
disapproved, by that agency. BART shall not include the amount of FTA assistance used in
transit vehicle procurements in the base amount from which the District’s overall annual goal
is established Alternatively, the District may establish project-specific goals for DBE
participation in the procurement of transit vehicles in lieu of complying with the remaining
sections of 49 CFR Section 26.49, subject to approval from the FTA.

L. Caltrans Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program
For any contracts that receive funding through Caltrans, the District will include contract
terms consistent with the Caltrans DBE Program Local Agency Implementation Agreement.

Triennial DBE Goals

Pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.45, the Office of Civil Rights will establish an triennial
overall DBE goal (“Triennial Goal”) according to the procedures expressed in Appendix B,
subject to the approval of the Board of Directors, for the participation of DBEs in all
projected contracts utilizing DOT financial assistance for a period covering three fiscal years.
The Triennial Goal will be expressed as a percentage of the total amount of DOT funds the
District anticipates expending in three year period covered by the triennial goal. A report
outlining the steps and calculations used to establish the District’s Triennial Goal (“Triennial
Goal Report”) will be submitted to the appropriate operating administration for review no
later than October 31 for each three fiscal year period to be covered by the Triennial Goal.

The Liaison Officer will track and evaluate its goal on a quarterly basis. This tracking is for
informational purposes only and to ensure that the District is meeting the largest feasible
portion of the Triennial Goal through race neutral means. In the event that the District
amends its Triennial Goal, it shall be submitted to the appropriate operating authority in a
manner consistent with 49 CFR Section 26.45.

The District's overall goal is reflective of the amount of ready, willing and able DBEs that are
available to participate in contracting opportunities and is reflective of the amount of DBE
participation the District would expect absent the effects of discrimination. The District
intends to meet this goal, to the fullest extent feasible, through the race-neutral measures.
Where race-neutral measures are inadequate to meet the annual overall goal, the District will
establish contract-specific goals for particular projects with subcontracting opportunities.
Contract-specific goals will be established in accordance with the findings of District’s
disparity study (“Disparity Study”), or any subsequent updates to the Disparity Study.

11|Page





VII.

VIII.

Overall project goals may be set for design-build, turnkey and/or multi-year projects
consistent with the requirements of 49 CFR Part 26, as outlined in Section XIV.

Contract-Specific DBE Goals

In accordance with the procedures expressed in Appendix C, the District will establish
contract-specific DBE goals on construction contracts with subcontracting opportunities to
the extent that the District cannot achieve its annual overall DBE goal with race-neutral
measures. Where a contract-specific DBE goal has been established, the bidder or proposer
must meet the contract-specific goal or demonstrate that it made good faith efforts to do so.
The bidder shall be entitled to a hearing if the bidder fails to show either that it met the goal
or that it made good faith efforts to meet the goal. All proceedings by the District in
connection with good faith efforts will be held by an outside independent hearing officer
selected in accordance with District procedures. A bidder or proposer will be ineligible for
award if it does not meet the goal or demonstrate good faith efforts. Contract specifications
will provide that contract award is conditioned on meeting these requirements.

A contract specific goal shall only be established where supported by the findings of the
District’s Availability and Utilization Study or an update to that study.

DBE Eligibility

A. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise

A Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) is a for-profit, small business concern: 1) that is
at least fifty-one percent (51 %) owned by one or more individuals who are socially and
economically disadvantaged or, in the case of a corporation, in which at least fifty-one
percent (51%) of the stock is owned by one or more socially and economically disadvantaged
individuals; and 2) whose management and daily business operations are controlled by one or
more of the socially and economically disadvantaged individuals who own it.

B. Small Business Concern

A small business concern is an existing small business, as defined by Section 3 of the Small
Business Act and the Small Business Administration regulations implementing it (13 CFR
Part 121), whose average annual gross receipts for the previous three years does not exceed
$22.41 million (or as adjusted for inflation by the Secretary of DOT) pursuant to 49 CFR
Section 26.65(b).

C. Socially and Economically Disadvantaged Individuals
There is an assumption that an individual is both socially and economically disadvantaged if
he or she is a citizen or lawfully admitted permanent resident of the United States and is:

1.  Black American (including persons having origins in any of the Black racial groups of
Africa);

2. Hispanic American (including persons of Central or South American, Cuban,
Dominican, Mexican, Puerto Rican, or other Spanish or Portuguese culture or origin,
regardless of race);

3. Native American (including persons who are Aleuts, American Indians, Eskimos, or

12|Page





Native Hawaiians);

4.  Asian-Pacific American (including persons whose origins are from Brunei, Burma
(Myanmar), Cambodia (Kampuchea), China, the Commonwealth of the Northern
Marianas Islands, the Federated States of Micronesia, Fiji, Guam, Hong Kong,
Indonesia, Japan, Juvalu, Kiribati, Korea, Laos, Macao, Malaysia, Nauru, the
Philippines, Samoa, Taiwan, Thailand, Tonga, the U.S. Trust Territories of the Pacific
Islands (Republic of Palau), or Vietnam);

5. Subcontinent Asian American (including persons whose origins are from Bangladesh,

Bhutan, India, the Maldives Islands, Nepal, Pakistan, or Sri Lanka);

A Woman; or

7. A member of any additional group that is designated as socially and economically
disadvantaged by the Small Business Administration.

o

The District will require each individual owner of a firm applying to participate as a DBE
and whose ownership interest is relied upon for DBE certification to submit a signed,
notarized certification that each presumptively disadvantaged owner is, in fact, socially and
economically disadvantaged. The District will also require each individual owner of a firm
applying to participate as a DBE and whose ownership interest is relied upon for DBE
certification to submit a sign, notarized statement of personal net worth with appropriate
supporting documentation.

Additionally, any individual may demonstrate, by a preponderance of evidence on a case-by-
case basis, that he or she is socially and economically disadvantaged. The District will
follow governmental requirements, including 49 CFR Section 26.67 and the guidelines in 49
CFR Part 26, Appendix E, for determining social and economic disadvantage.

D. Personal Net Worth

Personal Net Worth (PNW) means the value of the assets of an individual remaining after
total liabilities are deducted. As defined more specifically and limited in 49 CFR Part 26, an
individual's personal net worth does not include:

1. The individual's ownership interest in an applicant or participating DBE firm;
2. The individual's equity in his or her primary place of residence;

An individual's personal net worth includes only his or her own share of assets held jointly or
as community property with the individual's spouse. An individual owner of a firm whose
ownership and control are relied on for DBE certification cannot be determined to be
economically disadvantaged if he or she has a personal net worth exceeding $1.32 million.

E. Non-Residence Certification

BART’s market area consists of Alameda, Contra Costa, San Francisco and San Mateo
counties (the “Market Area”). In order for a firm with a principal place of business located
outside of the Market Area to be eligible to benefit from the race and gender conscious
program, the firm must show that it has attempted to do business in the four county area. All
firms whose primary place of business is located in or is domiciled within the Market Area

13|Page





are presumptively assumed to meet the following requirements. The requirements may

include but are not be limited to:

1. Currently or previously a party to a construction contract to do work in one of the four
counties.

2. Attendance at a BART sponsored outreach meetings, including pre-bid meetings, town
hall meetings and/or Board of Director meetings.

3. Any form of communication with BART, including purchasing contract documents,
requesting information from BART and attending or registering to attend BART
sponsored outreach events.

Procedures to Ascertain Eligibility and Utilization of DBEs

In order to ensure that the DBE Program benefits firms actually owned and controlled by
socially and economically disadvantaged individuals, the District has established certification
procedures for DBEs and joint ventures involving DBEs and will abide by the procedures
contained in Appendix E.

A. DBE Certification

The California Unified Certification Program (CUCP), to which the District is a party, is
governed by the terms of the Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) for a Unified Certification
Program, effective January 1, 2002. The CUCP provides "one-stop shopping” to applicants
for certification in California. An applicant need only apply once and the certification will be
honored by all recipients in the State.

The District is a certifying agency under the CUCP. Prospective DBE firms may obtain the
requisite DBE application forms from the District's web site at www.bart.gov or by
contacting the Office of Civil Rights directly.

DBE firms certified pursuant to the Unified Certification Program (UCP) will be counted
towards a bidder's DBE participation goal unless successfully challenged under this DBE
Program. Pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.81(c), all certifications by the CUCP shall be pre-
certifications, i.e., certifications that have been made final before the due date for bids on a
contract on which a firm seeks to participate as a DBE. Only firms that are certified as
eligible DBE's may participate as DBE's in the Program.

Certifying agencies of the CUCP will not process a new application for DBE certification
from a firm having its principal place of business in another state unless the firm has already
been certified in the other state.

When processing an application from a firm that has been certified by the SBA as a small
business, the District has two choices. It may either accept the SBA certification decision,
subject to the District's own on-site review, or it may use the firm's SBA application package
in lieu of requiring completion of the District's own application form (in which case the
District will still have to complete an on-site review, but will make its own decision).

14|Page



http://www.bart.gov/



Certification procedures, including those applicable to initial certification, removal
(decertification), and certification appeals, are set forth in Appendix E.

B. Termination

Termination of DBE firms shall only be for good cause, as determined by the District in
accordance with 49 CFR Section 26.53 (f). Any termination of a DBE must be essential to
the contract and not merely discretionary, advantageous or for the convenience of the
contractor. A contractor must immediately notify the Liaison Officer of a DBE's inability to
perform, and must provide documentation to substantiate any claim of non-performance. In
order to terminate a DBE firm, the contractor must receive prior, written approval from the
District.

In the event that the District approves the termination of the DBE, the contractor will be
required to make good faith efforts to substitute the terminated DBE subcontractor with
another certified DBE. The contractor will be required to provide copies of new or amended
subcontract agreements.

C. Remedies for Non-Compliance

Non-compliance consists of failure or refusal to implement, meet or satisfy the applicable
governmental requirements related to DBE participation, including but not limited to 49 CFR
Part 26 and related federal guidelines or the applicable requirements of the District's DBE
Program and/or District contracts related to DBE participation.

The District may impose any remedies for non-compliance authorized by the federal, state
and local regulations and District contract specifications, including withholding of progress
payments, liquidated damages and termination of the contract in whole or in part.

D. Counting and Tracking DBE Participation

Only the work actually performed by a DBE will be counted towards the DBE goal. The cost
of supplies and materials obtained by the DBE or equipment leased (except from the prime
contractor or its affiliate) may also be counted.

DBE participation will not be counted toward the prime contractors achievements or the
overall goal until the DBE has been paid. In accordance with 49 CFR Section 26.51(g), The
Liaison Officer will track the participation of DBESs in contract-specific goal contracts
separately from the participation of DBESs in contracts without contract goals. The Liaison
Officer will not count towards the overall goal that portion of a DBEs participation that is
achieved after the certification of the DBE has been removed during the performance of a
contract. If the DBE's ineligibility is caused solely by its having exceeded the applicable size
standard during the performance of the contract, the District will continue to count its
participation on that contract toward overall and contract goals

1. Expenditures may only be counted if the DBE is performing a commercially useful
function on the contract. A DBE performs a commercially useful function when it is
responsible for execution of the work of the contract and is carrying out its
responsibilities by actually performing, managing, and supervising the work involved.
To perform a commercially useful function, the DBE must also be responsible, with
respect to materials and supplies used on the contract, for negotiating prices, determining

15|Page





quality and quantity, ordering the material, and installing and paying for the material
itself To determine whether a DBE is performing a commercially useful function, the
District will evaluate the amount of work subcontracted, industry practices, whether the
amount the firm is to be paid under the contract is commensurate with the work it is
actually performing and the DBE credit claimed for its performance of the work, as well
as other relevant factors.

A DBE does not perform a commercially useful function if its role in the contract is
limited to that of an extra participant through which funds are passed in order to obtain
the appearance of DBE participation. If the DBE does not perform or exercise
responsibility for at least 51 % of the total cost of its contract with its own work force, or
the DBE subcontracts a greater portion of the work of a contract than would be expected
on the basis of normal industry practice for the type of work involved, the DBE is
presumed not to be performing a commercially useful function

2. If materials or supplies are obtained from a DBE manufacturer, 100 percent of the cost
will be counted. If the materials and supplies are purchased from a DBE regular dealer,
60 percent of the cost will be counted. If the materials and supplies are purchased from a
DBE broker or a manufacturer’s representative, the entire amount of the fees or
commissions charged for assistance in the procurement of the materials or supplies, or
fees or transportation charges for the delivery of materials or supplies required on a job
site will be counted towards the DBE goal provided that the fees are reasonable and not
excessive as compared with fees customarily allowed for similar services.

3. Trucking will be counted in accordance with the provisions of 49 CFR Section 26.55

Required Contract Provisions
The District will include the following provisions in federally funded contracts, where
appropriate.

A. Nondiscrimination Assurance
Each federally funded contract the District signs with a contractor, and each subcontract the
prime contractor signs with a subcontractor, will include the following statement:

“The contractor, subrecipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race,
color, national origin or sex in the performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry
out applicable requirements of 49 CPR Part 26 in the award and administration of DOT
assisted contracts. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material
breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other
remedy as the District deems appropriate as specified in the contract.”

B. Prompt Payment Policy and Provisions
Each federally funded contract the District signs with a contractor will include the following
provisions:

“The contractor shall promptly pay any and all subcontractors by an instrument that
guarantees availability of funds immediately upon deposit of said instrument. The contractor

16|Page





XI.

shall include, in its monthly invoice submission to BART, amounts to pay for all
subcontractors’ acceptable invoices, no later than 30 days after receipt of such invoices.
Unless otherwise approved in writing by the District, the contractor shall, within ten (10)
days after receipt of the payment made by BART, pay to each of its immediate
subcontractors for satisfactory performance of its contract, the amounts to which they are
entitled, after deducting any prior payments and any amount due and payable to the
contractor by those subcontractors. Any delay or postponement of such payment may take
place only for good cause and with the District’s prior written approval. If the contractor
determines the work of the subcontractors to be unsatisfactory, the contractor must
immediately notify in writing the District (with a separate notice to the District’s Office of
Civil Rights if the subcontractor is a DBE) and state the reasons. Failure by the contractor to
comply with this requirement will be construed to be breach of contract and may be subject
to sanctions as specified in the contract.”

“Should the District make incremental inspections and, upon approval of the contractor’s
work at various stages of the contract, pay a portion of the retainage, the contractor shall
promptly, within 30 days after the District has made such payment, pay to the subcontractor
who has satisfactorily completed all of its work and whose work is covered by the District’s
inspection and approval, all retainage owed to the subcontractor. The District’s incremental
inspections, approval or release of a portion of the retainage under this section shall not
constitute acceptance.”

For the purposes of this section, a subcontractor’s work is satisfactorily completed when the
prime contractor certifies to the District that all the tasks called for in the subcontract have
been accomplished.

Contract Compliance and Reporting

The District will implement appropriate mechanisms to ensure compliance with the DBE
Program by all program participants under federal, state and local law. This includes
establishing contract monitoring and enforcement provisions consistent with 49 CFR Section
26.37(b).

A. Bidders List

Pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.11(c), the District will create and maintain a bidders list
consisting of all firms bidding on prime contracts and bidding or quoting subcontracts on
federally funded projects. For every firm, the following information will be included: firm
name, firm address and firm's status as a DBE or non-DBE. The District may also request
additional information from bidders such as the age of the firm, the annual gross receipts of
the firm and the ethnicity and gender of the owners, although this information is not required
to be provided by any bidders.

B. Reporting to the US Department of Transportation

Pursuant to 49 CFR Section 26.11(b), the District will continue to report DBE participation
and Triennial Goal setting methods to the FTA as directed. In addition the District shall
maintain prescribed statistical data.

17|Page





XIl.

XIHI.

C. Other Reporting Requirements

The District will track the amount awarded the DBE, the amount paid to the DBE as stated
by the prime contractor, and the amount paid to the DBE as verified by the DBE. Pursuant
to 49 CFR section 26.37 (b), the District will certify in writing that any work committed to
DBE firms is performed by the DBE firm to which the work has been committed.

The Liaison Officer will report the actual amount paid to DBEs to FTA. Contractors
performing work on the District's DOT assisted contracts are required to separately report the
DBE participation of their contracts achieved through race-neutral and through race-
conscious means.

Public Participation and Outreach for the Triennial Goal

A. Public Participation

Prior to finalizing the Triennial Goal Report, the District will consult with minority, women
and general contractor groups community organizations, US DOT agencies or grantees (to
the extent necessary) or other officials or organizations which could be expected to have
information concerning the availability of disadvantaged, non-disadvantaged and SBs, the
effects of discrimination on opportunities for DBES and the District’s efforts to establish a
level playing field for DBEs and SBs.

Miscellaneous

A. Program Review

The DBE Program will be reviewed by the Liaison Officer every five (5) fiscal years, or
more frequently as necessary at the sole discretion of the Board, to ensure that elements of
the DBE Program are tailored to address any discrimination that may exist in the industries
relevant to the District's contracting activities and to ensure that the DBE Program does not
disproportionately impact any particular group.

B. Severability

Should any part, term, provision or element of this DBE Program be decided by the courts to
be illegal or in conflict with any law of the United States or of the State of California or
otherwise rendered unenforceable or ineffective, the validity of the remaining parts, terms,
provisions, or elements shall not be affected.

C. Expiration

The DBE Program will expire on August 31, 2022, unless prior to that date the Board of
Directors finds that the DBE Program continues to be necessary in order to offset the effects
of prior discrimination in the industries relevant to the District's contracting activities.

18|Page





XIV. Special Requirements for Design/Build Contracts Under Public Contract Code

In addition to the terms, conditions and provisions described above in Sections | through
XI11, the following terms, conditions and provisions are applicable to design-build contracts
awarded by the District under the authority of Public Contract Code Sections 20209.5 et seq.:

A. Category of Work Goals

On any Design-Build contract with subcontracting opportunities, the District shall establish
Category-of-Work goals of a type and level appropriate to meet either the contract goal or the
race-conscious portion of the project overall goal. The Category-of-Work goals will address
contracting activities in various areas of work throughout the life of the contract. As more
fully described in Section XIV.E, below, a bidder must commit to meet each of the Category-
of-Work DBE goal(s) or demonstrate that it could not meet said Category-of-Work DBE
goal(s) despite its good faith efforts

B. DBE Participation Credit for Second Tier Subcontractors

DBE participation by 2™ -tier subcontractors will be counted toward the DBE goal subject to
ensuring that record keeping and enforcement provisions for DBE participation are passed
down to the 2"-tier subcontractor.

C. Bonding Waiver for Subcontracts

The District, in its discretion and on a contract-by-contract basis, may require a prime
contractor to eliminate bonding requirements for subcontracts under a certain size or which
meet a specific criteria. Invocation of this provision shall be determined in consultation with
the Office of Civil Rights.

D. DBE Cost-Loaded Schedule
The District, in its discretion and on a contract-by-contract basis, may require a prime
Contractor to provide a DBE Cost-Loaded Schedule to the Office of Civil Rights.

E. Phased Goals

Where a Category-of Work goal has been set that is applicable to an initial project phase
(e.g., design and professional services), a bidder shall identify at bid all DBE firms, their
participation level and type of work to meet the initial Category-of-Work goal(s) or shall
demonstrate good faith efforts to meet such goal(s). In addition, where Category-of-Work
goals have been set that are applicable to subsequent project phases (e.g., construction), a
bidder at bid shall commit to meet each subsequent Category-of-Work goal identified in the
Design-Build documents or shall demonstrate good faith efforts to meet such goal(s).
Notwithstanding a bidder’s commitment at bid to meet a specific level of DBE participation
for Category-of-Work goals applicable to later project phases, a bidder shall not be required
to identify at bid the DBE firms it will use for this work. Rather, the bidder’s commitment
will be monitored during performance of the contract in a number of ways, including but not
limited to the following:

1. Prior to commencement of work by the DBE, the contractor shall submit a monthly DBE
Participation Form identifying the DBE firm, its participation level and type of work to

19|Page





be performed, along with a copy of the subcontract with the DBE. No credit shall be
given the contractor for participation by any DBE that has not been approved by the
District.

2. The contractor shall file monthly DBE Utilization Reports.

If required, the contractor shall periodically submit a DBE cost-loaded schedule.

. BART shall undertake regular evaluation of the contractor’s progress regarding DBE
participation and may request corrective action plans as appropriate.

In accordance with current regulations, all DBEs that are to participate on the project
must be certified prior to bid. Moreover, subcontracts with DBEs are governed by the
requirements of Public Contract Code Section 20209.10 (c).

20|Page





